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TAI was a resident was $43,200, against which TAI has paid $21,258.66, and paid $20,000 in

improvements, leaving only nominal aclual damages.

3. CRYSTAL v. BUSH - Loans For ACS Sfock Purchase

This present aotion is just one of twol cases that have been filed against the Bush

defendants by Steve Crystal, individually and tltough various entities that he owns. The other

çase is entitled Crystal v. Bush, et al., case#Cv16-00865, (hereinafter referred to as the "Crysfal

Action") and is currently pending in Department Fou¡ before the Honorable Connie Steinheimer,

The Crystal Action involves a series of loaus to the Bush defendants totaling more than $5

million, usêd to, purchase a controlling inter:çst in, a start up company known as Automated Cash

Systems (ACS). Crystal and his various entities have sued the Bush defendants for atleged

breaches of those notes. During the course cif the events involved in that case, the stock

purchased by one of the Bush defendants was transfered back to Crystal, a¡rd there is a dispute

as to the ownership of that stock, with Crystal clairníng that it is now his, and the Bush

claiming a right thereto. After the stock transfer, Crystal caused the closure of ACS,

and transferred all of its assets to a newly formed a company; Automated Cashless Systems

(ACLS), which now Crystal controls, the Bush defendanfs claim that this action constituted

fiaud on the part,of Crystal, ACS and ACLS.

The loans in the Crystal âction were used by a related entily, Tyche Acquisitions Group

(TAG), to purchase a controlling interest in ACS, The loans were secured by the ACS stock, a

personal injury case that had been filed on behalf of lv{r. Bush, and various pieces of art,

including those which had been present at the Virginia Slreet property. When the loans went

into default, the first step taken in tlre Crystal Action vras to seek a temporary restraining order,

ultimately a Preliminary Injunction, prohibiting Mr. Bush, and any related legal entities,

from selling, offering to sell, transfering or encumbering any of the pieces of art discussed

'above. [n essence, this action precludes Mr. Bush from generating any form of income or funds

that could be used to address settlement of either this case or the Crystai action, However, it is

1 ln actuality, there were originally three (3) cases, but one of the cases, Automated Casl,

Systems v. Bush, et al., was dismissed when its clainls were consolìdated into the Crystal Action.

3
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tlre contenfion of the Bush Defendants that the agreements between the parties resulted in

ACS stock being withdravrm from consideration as collateral fbr the loan, zurd that

repayment of the debt owed to Crystal, they would have to be transfened back to TAG.

In order to facilit¿te the pay off to Crystal, and obtain the retum of the ACS stock,

would be necessary for Mr. Bush to seçure a willing investor to step into his and/or

position upon paying,off The debt to Crystal. Several such persons exist, and are ready,

añd able to take that exact action. However, to do this, tlrere would have to be a joint

of noü only the Crystal aotion, but the claims in this case as well. Thus, defendants proposed

Crystal, who is both the plaintiff in the Crystal action and the individual that controls the

in this câse, that both cases be discussed together at the upcoming settlement cq¡rference

February 9. Crystal refuses to do so, which would render the settlement conference in this

meaningloss, as Mr. Bush would have uo meâns of generating any funds to settle thc claims,

this matter.

It is the position of the,Bush defenda¡rts that Crystal is refrising to negotiate in the

,actîon in order to solidify his, position, while accruing interest charged by Crystal at a rate

25o/o per,annum, whçrein he has effbctivcly taken over conkol of ACLS, a company

ultimately will have far more value then the total of all tl,e loans and debts owed to Crystal.

other words, he will have taken all of the stock previously owned by TAG, converting it to

own use, ancl rvill still be able to csllect the debts owed for the pulchase of that stock by

Mr. Bush's artwork. In other words, Mr. Bush and TAG get nothing, yet have to pay Crystal

excess of $8 million.

i Accordingly, to ensure that such an inequitable resulx does not occur, it is necessary

compel the consolidation of this case with the Crystal action, solely f'or putposes of

discusSions at the upcotning settlement conference on February 9,2017, before the

Judge Russell. Defendants herein pray that such an order be issued forthrvith.
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Affirmation

The undersignerl hereby affirms that the forcgoing document, does not contain

social sccurity numbsr of any þerson.

Dated: Februarv 6,2011

PICONE & DEFILIPPIS, A P.L,C.
625 N, lsr Sheet
San Jose, CA95ll2

Dated:rFèbruarl¡ 6. 20 I 7

By: /s/:Steve M. Defilíuois
STEVE M. DE.FILIP}IS, ESQ.
CA BarNo. 11.7292 (Pro- Hac Vice)
AttpmeJs for D efendants i

RONALD G, BUSH
TYCHE ART INTERNATIONAL, INC.

PLLC

Nevada State Bar No. 1

Attomeys for Defendants
RONALD G. BUSH
TYCHE ART'INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By:

5
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CERTI FICA.TE O F S ERVI C E

Pursuant to NRCP Rule 5(b), I hereb! certify that on February 6,2A17,I caused the

foregoing document to be served to all parties to this action byl

.- Placing â true copy thøeof in a sealed postage prepaid envelope in the United

States Mail in Reno, Nevada INRCP 5(bX2XB)]

I{and-delivery INRCP 5 (bX2XA)] via. RENO/CARSON MES SENGER SERVICE

--FacsimileFederal Express, UPS, or other ovemight delivery

_-rX-E-filing pur$u4nt to Section IV of District ofNcvada Electronic Filing Procedures

|NRCP 5(bX2XD)l

fully addressed as follows:

W. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada SøteBarNo. 1037
WOODBURN AND.IIiEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951 1

/s/ Alicia G. Johnson
ALICIA G. JOHNSON
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FILED
Ëlectronically
cv1 6-00948

2017-02-08 04:56:49
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 59423

IN THE SECOND ruDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

,*:l t

CIP REAL ESTATE SO. VIRGINIA LLC,
a Nevada limited liability company; CIP
REAL ESTATE LLC, a Nevada limited
liability company,

Case No. CVl6-00948

Dept. No. I

Plaintiffs,

vs.

RONALD c. BUSH aka RONNIE G. BUSH,
an individual; TYCHE ART INTERNATIONAL,
INC., a Nevada corporation; and DOES l-5, inclusive;

Defendants.

ORDER

On February 6,Z0l7,Defendants RONALD G. BUSH and TYCHE ART

INTERNATIONAL, INC-,.by and tlrough counsel of record, PICONE & DEFILIPPIS, A P.L.C,

and JOHNSON LAW PRACTICE, fited a Defendants' Motlon to Consolìdate Actìonsþr Purposes

of settlement conference only. onFebruary 8,2017,Plaintifl cIP R-EAL ESTATE LLc ("cp"),
by and through counsel of record, WOODBURN AND V/EDGE, filed an Opposition.Tlrc

settlement conference is scheduled for February 9,2A17, before the Honorable Judge Russell.

)M

6
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The Court finds the motion is untimely and finds the Department 4 case should not be added

to the scope ofthe settlement conference. Accordingly, and good cause appearing, Defendants'

Motion lo Consoltdate Actionsþr Purposes of Settlement Conþrenee Only is hereby DENIED.

ITIS SO ORDERED.

DATED tf,is Çln day of Febru aryZ0t7.

\rru¿'Luf .- fu,uu,,,,
J. BERRY
Judge

JAilIÀî
Disù{/t

-t-
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cERTrÞ-rcATE OF S.Ë. RVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certifo that I am an employee of the Second Judicial District Court

of the state of Nevadq County of Washoe; that on this g) auv oifufuWWídeposited in the

County mailing system for postage and mailing with the United States Postal Service in Reno,

Nevada, a true copy of the attached document addressed the individuals listed herein and/or

electronically filed the foregoing document with the Clerk of the Court by using the ECF system

which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

VIA ECF
Dane Anderson, Esq.
Alicia Johnson, Esq.
Steve Defilippis, Esq
Walter S/ioker, Esq.

- 1.
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q I L L, _Q.[_-9ôLL R. I G_8I .Ig-BgEUß ç H.AS E AçSE E rvr Ç N.r a nd I &R EVo CAB L E-

lNÞl¡!_q]JaÀr Ë_Ia-SELIEB"F-AIAOENEY rcE]:&y_MENr-8ffUNÞS

Nrivernber 28.}Qi4

Seller RON G. BUSH andlor Rerrarssarrce Masters. LLC. Cfassic Fine Art, LLC or affiliatecj
trlr4påntes
f'00û Smíihridge Dr.. Ste. P11-68, Renc. NV 895ú2

BLryer JIM û¡CGOWEN,ÎRUS]-EE. McGowen & ljcwler PLLC
Dallas. Texas

lnfomralicn Gn it.lms Sold

1. #9 of I Brçnz-e Casting o1 lvlichelengeio $t. Peter Pieta'

2 1 Painting crcdited to have been pa¡nTâC by Jackson Polìock. ídentifiocl as #82

?, I P;rinting credited to håve t-reerr lrainìeiJ b!, Jackson Poilcck. identifierj as #Q2

Fo¡ çorrslderation of $500,000 to be paid b-y wire transfer tô the þeiow identifieci bilnk amour'ìî
íor delivery to R.cn Buslr [tpÒn execution cf ihre ctocr"¡nrent on No,¡eniber 26. 20i4:

Vlells Fargo Bar:k
Adoress: 4IB0 Caughlin Pã¡¡(w{ly, Reno, N\/ S95 19
Routing: 1210C'û248
To the Account of Ronnie Gene Bush. Acc't: # 6123ôt8696

l, the undercigned Seller. Ron Bush on L:ehalf of myseff and RenaÍssance Maslers, LLC. C.lassic.
Fitle Art. LLC or affiliâle cornpenies, trereby sell the abûve describerl rirree preces of ari to
[3uyer, and affirm that I have tlre authority to seil and transfer the åbûve three described pieces
oi ar't anci thái tl'|Ê informatron provicJed ín this bill ol saie is true ancJ corrett. The three pieces of
áli âre sr)[cJ free anrl clear of clÊb'. with good titie âñd rnlerest to the Buyer named above.

Buyer anr.! $eller funher âg;ee tllat iSuyer ltereby give$ geller lhÊ iifevocã¡)ie iighl io br-ry tlre
ihree ebove-listec pieces of ert Þack fronr ihe Br,,ycri for the tc¡lat sr:n': of 53.500 00lJ as long as
Seíler pays the fuil S3,50[,Ct0 to Buyer iÒ Ëùnìplête the lrr.ry.þ¿e¡ cl fhe tivee pìeces of sd
lrliniecirü{çly ,-rpc)n Sale Df arìy of Ìhê a¡1 or on or þefr:re MArch 1. ?015. whichever occurs firs¡

Si?liËr heteby acknowleoges thal ihê õnacllscl dócvmenl ¡s i'ìis irrevÒoable instrc¡ction to ilre law
firnl of Pir:one and Defìlippis in $an Jose. Californ¡a. iu pây Buyer the lotal surn of S3,500,0ûA
<rirectl5, froni that frrm s escror¡¡ of lhÈ $äle of up io six Jackson Pollock painiir-rgs that Seller is
rlegctiating v,/ith a Europearr hrryËr ând expecting lo close before the enci of '/eãr 2014. Ihis
instrt¡ction r$ contingenl upon Buyef wirrng ttre abo'¡e-descri!¡ed $5C0.000 upcrr receipt oi the
execuiei Biìi of Sale on November 26, 2014. Br.iyer acknowtedgÈe that this $3,500.000
payment w¡ll constJtute fuli payrnent fionr Seller tã buy bâck the 3 pieces of ad described abcr,::
f.ee ancl c¡ear brances or hens, ..ç f- -...

--.J
ürgrrature of Seller.

Roô (i-tsu:h-
vËnrber ?6. ?C'i{

Novenrber 26.2O14$ignariire of Burver:
Jim öv'Y€n. Tfustee

APPXOOOOT9



ìBBE-VIAABLE ¡NSTRUC1'ION ç -üËflLAELS.IAVYf]8M
Ia JAy FlJl¡Qg EB-oM_ËscRow oF AßL$aLË

tlovernber 26,2014

l, Ronnie Gene Brtsh hereby instr'üct Steve ûefilippis, Picorre & Defilippis, San Jose. CA. as
foll¿¡ws'

1 i have lrr;*rt negotialrng ¡h6 säle cf up to 3íi( Jackson Pollock p3inlinEs tc a buyer
refelrreC to heJ:e;n as "European Buyer "

2 Based on tepresenlattons by Dr. Jorg Richardr of lhe Ge¡nran Law Firni lJaver ð.
Mailander. Lertzhelcici 83-85,7ç192 Stutigart, Germany, ¡ þelleve the salÊ ì/i,ill close,
hefore lhe etrd ül th;s year.2A1.4

3. I have relained the serviçes <¡f thr" Law Offices of Picclne & Defllippis to transact ihe legal
docL¡nrerits and escrow uf fur¡ds í).onr the åforenìentlorìed anliupaled sale of art.

4 I hereby give tne ìTrevocable instrucliorrs to Steve Defilippis for disbursements from the
ItlncJs recetved ftonr the abcve <jescribed sale of aft, trnntecliately upon receipt of the
Ír¡nds fronr sale ûf the arl, bi¡t rrefore Maroh 1, 2015. whichevÊr üccurs first

a 57 500.000 to be pard to rhe pårty named as påyee, for nroney still oweC cn
i;rckson Pollock parnlings, #C5. #Cö. #C7, #81?..

.!. legal fees as agreerl tr tne lew firrn of Ficone & Defilippis.

c. $3.500,ü00 to Jit¡r trlcGov¡en. Trustee. tr,lcGowen 3 Fnwier. flLLC.

ci lf ìhe saies price tf the arl eÞld rs tietvrÊÈr; S2i:lVl to $1291vi, lrvill ciirect 35ôÁ of
îhcss p¡æ*.rs to be paid 10 Jinl MêGov¿ert iRUSTEE fcr tlre purchase of
Michelängelo Bronzes.

e. lftheÈalespriceoitlrearl .çi¡lrJisalleasf$f30,000,0OCasexpected. lwdl direcl
$75M of thcse proceeds tú be paid to Jim McGor,ven, TRUSTEË ior the purchase
of Mrchelangelo Bronzes.

5" t hereby ar:knovr4edgç thÊt Stevê DeÍrlr¡:p.rs agreërrrÊrìt to foilow nry inslructions it'¡ ni)
way Èe¿'ves as arly guaranlÉe that the abrvÈ lïentloned ântiôipäfed $ale Òf at'l w¡ll
ãctuaily happen. Thjs instruction dccr-¡rnent rs nrereiy my ir'rstruciions ts Steve Defilippis
in the eveill that the aforer¡eniiorlecj sêiË c;f zr-f is kansacted and Defilippis agreeing to
Cistnbute lhe rncr'ìey

r""
;:

e
26 2û14

Ro

I Agree to Foilow Mr. Bush's âbotre l¡lstrt¡crlons

lrlouenrber 2ö.'¿ô14
Sieve M Defilipprs
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TO'

Orter

Fmmr Rabush6¡ù.¡4.<orn
riitory(aaol.mm; Cþþ¡lr¡@ô¡EÊt ÀÊú

flccowen futhod¿e
Êlday, llqì/?mbe' 28r e0l4 t2143:18 P¡l

SqbrrcB

M¡. McGowen,

Please seud me an email stating to the effe¿t tbe following:

I, Jim Mo6oweo, Trusto€, hereby aulhorize Ron Bush, for ttre purpgse of selling the

betow described itçms, to represànt tbat he owns the Jackson Pollock paintings 82 and

Q2 and the #9 of 9 Pieta through and until the expiration date of our "Sale and

Repurchaee A gretureat. "

Logistically, no one neÊds to know these pieces were ever actually purchased by you as long

as I pay you the $3,500,000 as agreed. All the esorow instructio¡s state is that Defilippis is to
pay you $3,5Muponmy sale of JacksonPollockpaintings.

Thank you"

c¿; RonaldWelbom

Make ìt a GREAT Døy"

Ron Bush, CEO

Renaíssance Masters, LLC

lgna issancgrnasterç. com

{MÌ707-479-4400

L327
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Jl"to¡lvô¡ú.oqm
rôbÉhQ4¡pl.t¡m
LeüE of A¡hwtsadon
Fllday, llffinbet 28' 201¡12316337 PllDTH

l,.tm Mc,t3owen, Trugtee, hereby euthorlze Ron Bush, tor tlo pufpôæ o,f€sl¡lng the.b€law dessibed

liems, lo rçpresont lhat he ovmithe Jaclson Pollodt paintlngs 82 and Q2 and ths 
"9 

ol I Plstâ through

and un$ üre explraüon date of our'Sale and Repurctrase AgrgÊment¡
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IN THE SECOND .JUDTCIAL DISTR]CT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN .AND FOR TI{E COUNTY OF WASHOE

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL¡, TrusLee of The

Barbara L. Crystal Decedent Trust;

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually
Plaintiffs

)

) Case No.:

) Dept. No.

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

cv16-00865

:4

V

RONALD G. "RON" BüSH, and indivídual;

TYCHE ACQUISITTONS GROUP, TNC., A

Nevada corporation; and DOES l--20,

Inclusíve,

Defendanls.

RECORDED DEPOSTTTON OF RONNTE GENE BUSH

Taken on ,June 29, 2076

At 1:05 P.m.

61-00 Neil Road, Suite 500

Reno, Nevada 89511

775,393,9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521

E-DEPOSITIONS
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STEVEN B. CRYSTAL v. RONALD G.'RON'BUSH
BUSH, RONNIE GENE on 06/29i2016 Page2

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaint.if f : CHRTS tr^]ICKER, ESQ.

WOODBURN ANd WEDGE

6100 Neil Road, Suit,e 500

Reno, Nevada 89511

DANE W. ANDERSON, ESQ.

I^IOODBURN aNd WEDGE

6l-00 Neil- Road, Suite 500

Reno, Nevada 8951-l-

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL

Plainti f f

For Lhe Defendants: STEVE DEFILIPPIS, ESQ.

PICONE 6. DEF]I,IPPTS, ATTORNEYS AT T,AW

625 North Fírst. Street #f

San Jose, California 95L1-2

ALTCTA JOHNSON, ESQ.

JOHNSON I,AW PRACTICE,

6LL Sierra Rose Dr,

Reno, Nevada 89511

PLLC

E-DEPOSITIONS
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STEVEN B, CRYSTAL v. RONALD G. "RON" BUSH
BUSH, RONNIE GENE on0612912016 Page 3

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521

WiLness

Mr. Bush

(SY lvir. lüícker)

INDEX

Direct

Page 5

RedirecL

Number

Exhíbít 42

EXHIBITS

Descrípt.íon

Secured Promíssory Note

Page

91- 
-

E.DEPOSITIONS

APPXOOOOST



L

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
I

1"0

1-1

T2

1"3

1"4

L5

L6

n
L8

19

20

2L

ta

23

24

25

STEVËN B. CRYSTAL v. RONALD G. "RON" BUSH
BUSH, RONNIE GENE on 06/29/2016 Page 40

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521

Q: Okay. Now, when waË the Monaco show? Just the

year ie good enough.

A: Yeah, lasL Year, ,June or 'JulY'

Qr 2015?

A: '15, ríghL.

Q: Okay. Ànd when did you borrow on 82 and Q2?

A: I don'L remember íf it' was before or after the

show.

Q¡ And that's bhe $500,000 loan that lr{r, McGowan is

involved in?

A¡ Yes.

Q: lthat are the terms of thab transaction?

A: 500,000 and then when safes are done, he's going

to get three -- $3 mí]lion back.

Q; McGowan?

A: Yeah.

Q: Do you know íf he¡s acting for a clíent or is he

acting for hÍs ovm interesb?

A: lrm told Lhat transacLion was Ôn behalf of a

clienL.

Q:Andsoyouborrow500,000anddådítcomefromMr'
McGowånt s lrust account?

A: Yes.

Q: And the deal is that when those paíntings are

sold, Mr. McGowan wiLl get $3 mill-íon?

E-DEPOSITIONS
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STEVEN B. CRYSTAL V. RONALD G. .RON, BUSH
BUSH, RONNIE GENE on0612912016 Page 41

A: Yeah. I was supposed Lo pay him bacl<, you know,

in a shorL time, but that didntt. happen.

Q: Does he have ríght to forecLose on the paintíngs?

A: I would certainly think so.

Q: Ie there -- in wrítten agreenent?

A: Yes.

Qr And do you have that?

A: Yes.

0: What does the wrít'ten agreement eay as far as what

happens íf you don¡b pay back the $500,000?

A: ft's actually wriLten up as a sale.

0¡ Well, what gives you t'he ríght t,o -- to get them

back?

A: WhaL gives me Lhe right Lo buy t.hem back?

Q: Well as I understood ít that you could sell" them

and he would get $3 millÍon, but you could stilL sell them, ls

that ríght?

A: Yes.

Q: OkaY. Who owns lhem then?

A: TechnicaLJ-y on paper, he owns them'

Q: McGowan.

A: It was done -- it was a done as a sale and buy

back, noL as a loan and a PaY back.

Q: So, would it be accurate to say you have an opbion

to buy thern back?

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521
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775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521

A: Yeah. Irm *- I'm not using that word as freely

now because of thíngs that have happened in this ' But from the

layman's point of view, yeah,

Q: Let me just ask you, your understandíng of the

transacLion is that Íf -- if youtre able to seLl the paintings,

$3 nill-ion of the saLes príce goes to Mr. Mc6owan?

Ar Yeah. And ít doesn't maLler whet,her that money

comes from those particular paint.ings.

Q: Okay.

A: Because Lherers -- therers also Michelangelors,

you know, Ínvolved. And v,¡herever the money comes from it

doesn't matter where money comes from.

Q¡ So, you could buy back the paintinge for $3

mil-l-íon?

A: That's righL. And -- and the Piet'à' It's al"l in

one t,ransacLion,

Q: Okay. TeLl- me about the transactlon that you jusb

described, would that ínvoLves bhe Pfetà.

Ar Itrs all Lhree tied toget.her.

Qr Okay. Are we talking about the transaction of Mr.

McGowan?

^.

Q:

A:

the $500,000

Yes.

Okay. And how is

It's just -- it's
loan, And aL Lhat

the Pie!à ínvolved ín thal?

in the same docurnent iL was as

Lime, \^/e were ín the middle of
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gelting the authent.ication done on the paintings, negotiating

wit.h t'he foundation to buy Michelangelo pieces and it was a

$500,000 loan.

Q; So, what is bhe deaL on the Pietà then?

A: Same Lhing. The 3 million gets aIl three pieces

free and clear back.

Q: So, Ís ít -- are you saylng that' you sold the two

,fackson Pollock's 82 and Q2 and the Pietà to Mr. Mc$orr¡an for

$500,000?

A: Irm saying that.'s what t.he document says, itrs a

loan.

Q: Okay. But the document would say that'?

A: The document would say sale. Just like when I did

hard money loans in real esLaLe,

Q: rs that the Pietà that síts in the buíIding in

South Vírginia?

A: Yes.

Q: What aboul Mr. Cryetal's interest in that? How is

that handled?

A: He has a -- he has 2.1 million coming from the

sale. Plus now, he has, well I donrL know what he has now,

buL the origi-nat deal was 2,1 million and 20? of Lhe profit.

Q: And that was increased to 50% interest rate?

A: Umm, yes.

Q: And was that dísclosed to Mr. McGowan lhat Mr.

775.393.9s31
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521
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Crystal has a 50% interest in the Pietà?

A: Hmm. No, I don't think I Lold Mr. McGowan \¡/hat --

I didn'L Lell him about Mr. Cryst.al's royalLies or percenlage

ownerships anymore than I told him about other royalties Lhat

are comíng from the pieces that I'm doing,

Q: Does the agreement wíth Mr. McGowan, does it,, on

íts face appear to sell the entire interest of bhe Pietà bo lv!r.

McGowan?

Ar On its face, yes,

Q: Where are the two ,fackson Pollock's paintíngs

located now?

A: I don't know exacLly where they are. I was back

Lhere three or four months ago and Look samples to Geneva or Lo

-- f dontL remember if T took those samples to Zurich. No, to

Geneva and I t.ook the samples from Mr. Welbornrg house.

Q: Okay. So, bhe last time you saw them at Mr.

Welborn's house?

A: Yes.

Q: Ðo you have any indÍcatíon that - it's Mr. Welborn

had paid the $500,000 for bhe paintings and the Piebà?

A: I don'L know. I -- I always can go by what Lhey

say and Lhey say itrs noL Mr. Welborn.

Q: But Mr. I{elborn had possession of then the last

time you taLk -- the last time you salr' them?

A: He went and got them when I t.old them I needed to

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 89521
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take samples for Lesting. I said, where -- can we do it at lhe

museum? Because I Lhought Lhey were stíll at the museum? And

he says, [o, we canrL cut things from them at the museum, And I

said, "lleff , where do you wanl me to meet you?'/ And he said,

"MeeL me aL the ranch." So, I met him, I videoed iL, you know,

so Lhere's a record of cutting off very tíny piece of paper off

at each of this. That's the last time I saw Lhem.

Q: When was bhat?

A: Three or four monLhs ago.

Qr Do you have a copY of the vídeo?

A: Yes.

Q: Have tlrose píeces that you cut off been tested?

A: Yes.

Q: And do You have the lest results?

A: Yes.

Q¡ What are the best results?

A: well, really inconclusive on the paper and that

really didn't show anything. I've also had fractals d'one, so I

guess I need to say, not ôn1y did I Lake pieces, but l took high

qualíty picLures for fractal analysis.

Q: And bhatts from the guy in the northwest that does

fractals?

A: Yes.

Q: What's hÍs narne?

A: Professor TaYlor.

775.393.9531
730 sandhill road, suite 105, reno, nevada 8952'l
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FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-03-28 06:43:34 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 60219391570
V/, Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951 1

Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwicker@woodburnandwedge. com
danderson@woodburnandwedge.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Steven Crystal

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES lI-20,

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY O}' V/ASHOE

Case No.: CVlT-00281

Dept. No.: 6

Plaintiff,
DECLARATION OT DIANNE
KELLING IN SUPPORT OF

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S
MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE AND

DISMISS CASE AND
REOUESTT]QR SANCTTONS

Defendants

l. I am an employee of Woodbum and Wedge and assistant 1o Dane W.

Anderson, Esq, This declaration is in support of Plaintiff s Opposition to Defendant's

Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and Request for Sanctions ("Motion to Quash")

2. On Febmary 9,2017,I took the Complaint and Summons in the Crystal v.

McGowen n1atter to the Second Judicial District Court for filing and issuance of fhe

Surnmo¡s so that the two could be serued upon Jim McGowen, who happened to be present

at Sunshine Litigation Services that day,

3. After I left the couúhouse with the fìled Cornplaint and issued Summons, I

drove straight to Sunshine Litigation Services, iocated at 151 Couritry Estates Circle, Reno,

-l-

'æ'

WOODBURN AND IYEDCE

6100 Ncil Ro¡d, Sùilc 500
Rcno, NeYadô 8951 I

Tcl: (7?5)688.3000
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Nevada, to serve the Summons and Complaint upon Jim McGowen.

4. Mr. Anderson texted me before I arrived at Sunslrine Litigation Ser.¿ices to tcll

me that he was in Room 5. See Exhibit 2.

5. I anived at Sunshine Litigation Services shortly before 12:30 p.m. When I

arrived, I greeted the receptionist. I then went into Room 5, wlrere Dane Anderson, attomey

V/. Ctuis Wicker of lVoodburn and Wedge, Plaintiff Steve Crystal, and two other gentleman,

were

6, While I was in Room 5, Steve Crystal offered to W, Chris Wicker to

photograph me serving Jim MsGowen. Mr. V/icker did not want a photo to be taken of the

service.

7. Steve Crystal photographed me in Room 5 holding up the Summons and

Complaint which I rvas there to serve. ,S¿e Exhibit "l." Mf. Crystal took the photograph at

12:30 p,m.

8. W. Chris Wicker left Room 5, and I also left the room. I took a seat in a chair

at a conference table located in Sunshine Litigation Service's reception/lobby.

g, Jim McGowen exited the room across from Room 5'because V/, Cluis'Wicker

asked to speak with him. Upon seeing him, I got up, Mr. Wicker identified him as Mr.

McGowen, and I personally served Jini McGowen at that time, I did not speak to him, but

handed liim the Sutnmons and Complaint.

10. I exited Sunshine Litigation Services and, once in my car, I texted Dane

Anderson that service had been accomplished. ,See Exhibit 2. Once I sent the text, I left the

premises and returned to Woodburn and Wedge'

-2-
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I swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and conect.- 
oorro tni"ffffi 'f March,Z[t|

KELLING
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Affir¡nation pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED: March 28,2017.

By:
'ff. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W, Anderson, Esq,
Nevada Bar No. 6883

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal

APPXOOOO9T



I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

I

10

11

12

l3

l4

15

16

17

l8

l9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
WOODBURN AND WEDCE

6 lq) Ncil fùond, Ssitc JOo
ß*o, ñV E,JI I

Tcl: (775) ó88-3w-

Exhibit No.
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Table of Exhibits
Dspcrintion

Photograph of Dianne
Kelling in Room 5 of
Sunshine Litigation
Services on February 9,
2017

Text exchange between
Danc Anderson and Dianne
Kelling on February 9,2017
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CEBTIFICATE Or SERVICE
I hereby certify that I am an employee of Woodburn and Wedge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through the Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the DECLARATION OX'DIANNE KELLING IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE AND DISMISS CASE to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq,
Canie L. Parker, Esq,
SNELL & WILMER,L,L,P.
50 \Vest Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
Attorneys þr Defendant

Dated: March 28,2017

By:
An employee of Woodburn and Wedge
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1520
W. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada B95l l
Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsinrile: 775-6B8-3088
cwicker@woodburnandwedge. com
danderson@\¡/oodbumândwedge. com

Attorneys for Plaintifl Steven Crystal

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COTINTY OF WASHOE

STÊVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES 1I-20,

Case No,: CV17-00281

Dept. No.:6

Plaintifï,
DECLARATION OF STEVEN B.

CRYSTAL IN SUPPORT OT'
OPPOSITION TO DEFTNDANT'S

MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE AND
DISMISS CASA AND

REOUEST FOR SANCTIONS
Defendants,

1. I am the Plaintiff, individually and as Trustee in the above matter. This

declaration is in support of Plaintiff s Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Quash Service

and Dismiss Case and Request for Sanctions.

2. I have had no contact with Mr. McGowen in the last two years.

3. I was surprised to see Mr. McGowen with Mr. Bush and Mr. Bush's attorney

on the morning of February 9 ,2017 , at Sunshine Litigation Services.

4. I played no role whatsoever in Mr. McGowen being present in Nevada.

5. I took a photograph of Dane Anderson, Esq.'s assistant, Dianne Kelling,

-l-
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liolding up a copy of the Summons and Complaint. I offered to photograph Ms. Kelling

serving Mr. McGowen, but Mr. Wicker requested that I not do so, so as to avoid

embarrassing Mr. McGowen at the time of sewice.

6. In July, 2014,1wired $2.1 Million to Mr. McGowen's trust account. This was

money I loaned to Mr. Bush for the purchase by Mr. Bush or one of his alter ego entities of

the full-size bronze sculpture made from an authorized casting of the original Michelangelo's

marble Pieta. Through discovery at the deposition of Mr. Bush in June, 2016, I found out

that Mr. Bush sold the Pieta and two purported Jackson Pollock paintings to Jim McGowen,

as Trustee, in November,2014, for only $500,000.

I swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and conect.

DATËD tnis/{fu1of March, 201 7.
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Affirmation pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number ofany person.

DATED: March 28,2017.

By:
w Wicker, Esq
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883
Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal
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CERTIT'ICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I arn an employee of Woodburn and Wedge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through thç Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the DECLARATION OF STEVE CRYSTAL IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVrCÛ.A,ND DTSMISS CASE to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq.
Canie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER,L,L,P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
At t o r ney s fo r D efend ant

Dated: March 2&2017

By: âr"r'æ-(h+
An employee of Woodburn and Wedge
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W. Clris Wicker, Esq.

Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bat 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 89511
Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwi cker@woodburnandwed ge. com
danderson@woodburnandwedge. com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Steven Crysøl

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
andDOES l1-20,

Case No.: CV17-00281

Dept. No.: 6

FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-03-28 06:43:34 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Iransaction # 6021939

IN THE SECOND JI.TDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR TI{E COTINTY OF WASHOE

Plaintiff,
DECI.ARÄTION OF DANE W,
ANDERSON IN SUPPORT OF

OPPOSITION TO DET'ENDANT'S
MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE ANn

DISMISS CASE AND
REQUEST FOR SANC"TTONS

Defendants.

L I am a shareholder with the law firm of Vy'oodbum and V/edge which

represents the Plaintiff, Steven B. Crystal, in the within tnatter. This declaration is in support

of Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and

Request for Sanctions.

Z. On the morning of February 9,2017,I was in my offrce. I received a call from

Chris \Micker who was taking a deposition in the case of Crystal, et al. v. Bush, et a/., Second

Judicial District Court Case No. CV16-00865, Departrnent No' 4'

WOODBURN ANÐ WEDGE
6100 Ncil Â.0åd, Suilc 500
Rcùo, Nevâdâ 89511

Tcl: (7?t) 688"3000 -l-
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3. Mr, Wicker called from Litigation Services and said that, to his surprise, Jim

McGowen was present for the deposition. Mr. Wicker asked me to prepare a Complaint for

claims our client has against Mr. McGowen as Trustee for an undisclosed principal.

4. I prepared the Complaint in this matter and asked my assistant, Dianne

Kelling, fo file the Complaint, get a Summons issned, and serve Mr, McGowen at Litigation

Services.

5. I went to Litigation Services to show Mr. Wicker and Mr. Crystal a copy of

the Complaint.

6. We were due to attend a settlement conference in front of Judge Russell in

Carson City in a different mattçr, CIP So. ltirginia LLC and CIP Real Estdte, LLC v. Ronald

G. Bush and þche Art Internalional, Inc. The conference was to commence at l:30 p.m.

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 to the Kelling Declaration is a text exchange I

had with Ms. Kelling telling her what room to come to with the Summons and Complaint.

8. Ms. Kelling arrived lvith the Summons and Complaint and came 1o our

conference room, Room No. 5. While there, a photograph of Ms. Kelling holding the

Summons and Complaint was taken. A copy of the photograph is attached to the Kelling

Declaration as Exhibit 2.

9. Mr. 'Wicker and Ms, Kelling left the room together with the expressed intent to

serve Mr. McGowen.

10. Mr. Wicker asked the resf of us not to go out there or take a picture, because

he did not want to embarrass Mr. McGowen when he was served.

I srvear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and conect.

DATED thisQÇday of March,Z}l7

a

V/
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Affìrmation ¡rursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby atlrm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person,

DATED: March 28,2017, WOODB

By:

AND

V/ Wicker, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883
Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal
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WOODEURN AND WEOCE

6ì00 l.Lll Rdd, Ssilc 500
Rcm, NV 895 I I

Tcl: (?75) 688-3000

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee ofVy'oodburn and V/edge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic serviee through the Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the DECLARATION Of'DANE ANDERSON IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

TO DEFDNDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVTCE AND DISMISS CASE to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq,
Canie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER, L,L.P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
Attorneys for Defendant

Dated: March 28,2017.

â\,.93
An employee of Woodburn and Wedge

By:
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FILED
Electronical
cv17-0028

2017-04-03 09:08:09 Al
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction #6030452

ly
1

coDE NO. 3370

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as
Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintiff,

Case No. CV17-O0281

Dept. No. 6

vs.

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DoES 11-20,

Defendant.

ORDER OF RECUSAL OF PRESIDING JUDGE AND FOR RANDOM REASSIGNMENT

W. Chris Wicker, Esq., counsel of record for the Plaintiff, Steven B. Crystal, is a

member of the law firm of Woodburn and Wedge. Prior to being elected as the presiding

judge in this department, I was a member of the law firm of Woodburn and Wedge. Several

cases involving some of the parties and/or property at issue in this case although filed in

2017 , were handled by Woodburn and Wedge while I was a member'

Therefore, in accordance with the applicable Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct, and

to avoid any actual or perceived conflict andlor any appearance of impropriety, the

undersigned hereby disqualifies herself as the presiding judge in this action.

I

1

APPXOOOl 12



1

2

3

4

5

þ

7

I
I

10

11

12

13

't4

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

The clerk shall randomly reassign this action to another department of this court for

all other proceedings. Once the reassignment has been completed, counsel shall contact

the new department regarding hearings, trial dates, or any events currently scheduled in

Department Six

Dated thisù
lrtl aL

day of îvla'ñh,2017

2
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I ar4.an e.mployee of THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT;

that on th&a^y offi,zo17,l electronicatty filed the foregoing with the clerk of

the Court system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

WALTER WICKER, ESQ.

JANlNE PRUPAS, ESQ.

DANE ANDERSON, ESQ.

CARRIE PARKER, ESQ.

And, I deposited in the County mailing system for postage and mailing with the

United States Postal Service in Reno, Nevada, a true and correct copy of the attached

document addressed as follows:

Judicial Assistant

APPXOOOl 14
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FILED
Electronical
cv17-0028

ly
1

2017 -04-03 1 1 :1 0:09
Jacqueline Bryan
Clerk of the Cour

Transaction # 6030{
coDE 1312

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL ÐISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as
Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintiff,
vs. Dept. No: 6

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,
PLLC' 

Defendant.

CASE ASSIGNMENT NOTIFICATION

I hereby certify the above-entitled matter has been randomly reassigned to

Departmênt 15, from Department 6.

Additional information:

On April 3rd,2A17, an Order of Recusal of Presiding Judge and for Random

Reassignment was filed.

Dated April 3, 2017.

Case No: CV17-00281

tlllÌrt7¡
fr Ci'

ûF \i{

ô
!:i
i

By

O¡,r9.,i 3 S "
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Case No. CV'17-00281

I certify that I am an employee of the Second Judicial District Court; that on

April 3, 2017, I electronically filed the Case Assignment Notification with the clerk of the

Court System which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

Honorable David A. Hardy,

JANINE PRUPAS, ESQ. for JIM MCGOWËN, TRUSTEE OF MCGOWEN & FOWLER,

PLLC

DANEANDERSON, ESQ, foTSTEVEN B CRYSTAL, TRUSTEE OFTHE BARBARA L.

CRYSTAL DECEDENT TRUST et al

CARRIE PARKER, ËSQ. for JIM MCGOWEN, TRUSTEE OF MCGOWEN & FOWLER,

PLLC

WALTER WICKER, ESQ. foI.STEVEN B CRYSTAL, TRUSTEE OF THE BARBARA L.

CRYSTAL DECEDENT TRUST et al

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not

contain the social security number of arry person.

Dated April3,2017

Deputy Clerk

APPXOOO1 
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CODE:

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintifl
vs.

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,
PLLC,

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-04-04 05:01:45
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 60349

cv17-00281

15

Defendant

ORDER ACCEPTING REASSIGNMENT

Department L5 of the Second ]udicial District Court will accept the assignment of

Case No.

Dept. No

A,
David A. Hardy
District Court Judge

the above-entitled action.

IT IS SO ORDERED.U
Dated: Aoril L2077

5
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3795
Jacey Prupas, Bar No. 9156
Carrie L. Parker, Bar No. 10952
SNELL & WILMER r.r-.p.

50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevada 89501
Teleplrone: 7 I 5-7 85-5440
Facsimile: l7 5-7 85-5441
Email : jprupas@swlaw.com

cparker@swlaw.com

Attorneys for Defendant James "Jim" McGowen,
erroneously sued as Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,
PLLC

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as
Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6038395 :

F I:iî¡' jLt.6

,Zi tít¡
'..- | 1::*

#l ¿'

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Case No. CV17-00281

Dept. No. 15

Plaintiff,

VS.

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES 11-20,

Defendants.

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO OUASH SERVICE AND DISMISS CASB AND
REOUEST FOR SANCTIONS

Defendant James "Jim" McGowen, erroneously sued as Trt¡stee of McGowen & Fowler,

PLLC, ("McGowen"), by and through undersigned counsel, hereby files this Reply in Support of

Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and Request for Sanctions ("Reply"). This Reply is

based upon the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure ("NRCP") 12, the following mernorandum of

points and authorities, and any oral argument this Court may entefiain.

4830-301 5-3798
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITTES

I. Introduction

Plaintiff s argument in response to the Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and

Request for Sanctions ("Motion") is to overrule Nevada Supreme Court precedent. Plaintiff urges

this Court to ignore the Nevada Supreme Court's holding that proper service is accomplished by a

disinterested party and CANNOT be accomplished by Plaintiff s counsel or his employee. Thus,

Plaintiff argues (in direct contradiction to Nevada law) that counsel's employee properly served

McGowen and that personaljurisdiction is proper based solely on service by counsel's employee.

This Court need not be distracted by Plaintiff s various declarations (all from interested

parties) purporting to describe the substance of plaintiffls allegations and the circumstances the

day the Complaint was filed. Under the factual scenario presented by Plaintiff, the best scenario

for Plaintiff is that an employee of Plaintiff s counsel served McGowen with the Summons and

Complaint. Under this scenario, however, service is improper and must be quashed as void.

Without proper selice, Plaintifls sole argument for personal jurisdiction based upon service in

Nevada also fails. While McGowen does not abandon his arguments that (a) PlaintifPs couusel,

and not counsel's employee, actually served the Summons and Complaint; and (b) Plaintiff

tricked or conspired to trick McGowen to come to Reno and to remain long enough to be served,

this Court need not even reach these arguments because Plaintifls service was improper. This

Court should dismiss this case for lack of personal jurisdiction and improper service based on

controlling Nevada Supreme Couft precedent that neither counsel nor counsel's employee can

effectuate proper service.

II. Factual Background

McGowen incorporates and reassefis the factual background set forth in his Motion.

McGowen is an attorney and resident of Texas who was tricked to colne to Nevada for a

settlement conference purpoftedly related to his client's interests. The sole reason he was in

Nevada was to atteud this settlement conference, and he was invited to sit in on a deposition he

was falsely told was related to some of his clients. Motion, Exhibit 1. Plaintifl in fact, concedes

the deposition did not relate to McGowen or his clients. Opp., p.2:27 .

4830-3015-3798 
1
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Plaintiff filed the instant Cornplaint and attempted service the day McGowen was in Reno

for the purporled settlement confererrce. While McGowen assefts Plaintiff s cor,rnsel himself

served him with the Summons and Complaint, Plaintiff assefts a secretary for Plaintiff s counsel

served the Summons and Complaint. The difference is immaterial, as neither Plaintiff s counsel

nor counsel's employee is disinterested. NRCP 4(c) forbids Plaintiffs counsel or any of his

employees from serving McGowen.

III. Lesal Arsument

A. Standard of Review

NRCP 12(b) provides for a motion to dismiss based on insufficient process, insufficient

service of process, and lack of personal jurisdiction. Service of process is invalid if it is not

served by a wholly disinterested person. Nevada Cornell Silver Mines v. Hankins, 5 I Nev. 410,

219 P.27,30 (1929). A motion to dismiss based upon insufficient process and insufficient service

of process is directed to the Court's discretion not to exercise power over the defendant and to

further the administration ofjustice. Coyne v. Grupo Indus. Triem, S.A. de C.V.,105 F.R.D.621,

629 (D.D.C. r98s).

Regarding a motion to dismiss based on lack of personaljurisdiction, "the plaintiff has the

burden of introducing competent evidence of essential facts which establish a prima facie

showing that personal jurisdiction exists." Trump v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct., 109 Nev. 687, 692, 851

P.2d740,743 (1993).

B. Service Was Invalid Because the Summons and Complaint Were Not Served
by a Disinterested Person.

Plaintiff argues this Court should ignore controlling Nevada Supreme Court precedent and

instead follow federal case law to interpret Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 4(c). Inexplicably,

Plaintiff quotes the controlling language from Sawyer v. Sugarless Shops, Inc., 706 Nev. 265,

269-70,792P.2d 14, 1l (1990), and argues it does not really mean what it says and this Coun

should just follow federal cases anyway.Opp., p.9:19-23. Plaintiffs argument fails for several

reasons

-3-
4830-30 I 5-3798
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First, tlre Nevada Supreme Couft, not the federal district cout1, is the controlling aLrthority

on theNevada Rules of Civil Procedure. Second, all of the federal cases or.ì which Plaintiff relies

were decided by federal district coufts in the 1980s, before the Nevada Supreme Court decided

Sawyer. Those cases were available to the Sawyer Court, and the Sawyer Court interpreted the

NRCP 4 without reference to them, or any other federal case for that matter. Sawyer controls this

case.

ln Sawyer, similar to this case, "[t]here [was] no disinterested party with personal

knowledge of the seruice of process." 106 Nev. at269,792P.2d at 17. The two individuals who

allegedly served the defendant, or someone claiming to be the defendant, did not know what the

documents were that they handed to the defendant. Id. "Evidence concerning the contents of the

envelope could be supplied only by an employee of the California attorney representing

[plaintiff]." Id. To prove service, plaintiff had to rely on "an interested secretary to its California

counsel." 1d. Recognizing "service many times becomes a battle of credibility and testimony,"

the Court held "fs]omething as fundamental and decisive as service is best taken away froln the

paftiesortheircounselorcounsel'semployees." úd.at270,792P.2dat17. Theplaintiffinthat

case could not establish proper service by a disinterested party, and the Court declared the default

judgment void. The holding in Sawyer is clear: proper service cannot be effectuated by counsel

or counsel's secretary.

Plaintiff s musings that an independent process server could not serve process under this

rule is desperate and meritless. Plaintiff concedes a process server is uot employed by counsel.

Opp., p. 9:27. A process server is an independent contractor of counsel, not an employee who

would be "interested" in the case.

Under Sawyer,Nevada observes a bright line rule prohibiting service of the summons and

complaint by a parfy, parly's counsel, or an ernployee of counsel. This rule exists to prevent "lre

4830-3ors-3798 - 4 -
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said/she said" disagreements over the factual circumstances of alleged service of jLrrisdictional

notice-the very disagreement occurring in this case. 
I This rule cannot be overcorne by a

photograph of an interested person purportedly holding the Summons.2

Service ofjurisdictional notice by a person who is not disinterested is no service or notice

at all. Nevada Cornell Silver Mines,219 P. at 30. Plaintiff filed a Declaration of Personal

Service stating counsel's secretary served the Summons and Complaint. Even assuming

arguendo, the secretary was the one who delivered the Summons and Complaint to McGowen,

such service was in direct violation of NRCP 4(c) and therefore void. Accordingly, this Court

must quash service of the Summons and Complaint.

C. Process Was Insufficient Based upon Trickery and Deceit.

Plaintiff asserts he and his counsel were surprised to see McGowen in Reno the day of the

deposition and settlement conference. Plaintiff s position is if a third party happened to trick

McGowen to come to Reno, such trickery should not prevent Plaintiff from taking advantage of

it, ginning up a Complaint against McGowen, tricking him to remain for service by someone who

is not disinterested, and basing personal jurisdiction solely on the fact McGowen was present for

such trickery. Plaintiff s argument lacks merit.

Process based on trickery and deceit is invalid and void. See Buchanan v. Wilson,254

F.2d849,850 (6th Cir. 1958); Coyne,105 F.R.D af 629;Empire Mfg. Co. v, Ginsburg,253lll.

App.242,247 (lll. App. Ct. 1929). Additionally, "witnesses, suitors, and their attorneys, while in

attendance in connection with the conduct of one suit, are immune from service of process in

another." Lamb v. Schmitt,285 U.S. 222,225 (1932).

McGowen was tricked to come to Nevada for a settlement conference and was tricked to

remain long enough for Plaintiff to serve him. This Courl should not condone a parly luring (or

conspiring to lure) an out-of-state attorney to Nevada for a purported settlement conference and

then serving him with a Complaint in order to learn more about the attorney's clients. Motion,

I Jurisdictional notice is treated diffelently than ser.¡ice of othel'documentation, such as a motion. Compare NRCP 4
(service of summons) and NRCP 45 (service of subpoena) to NRCP 5 (service of documents such as motions).
2 The assertion that a photo was taken just beftrre the Summons was selved is itself suspicious. One may wonder
why the photo was taken in the fìrst place. If PlaintilTtruly believed nothing dubious was occun'ing, why then take
the picture?

48,o-3ors-3798 - 5 -
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Exhibit 1, fl4. This is just the type of case where such attorney should be held immune from

process.

McGowen was irnrnune fi'om process when he came to Reno in good faith for the

purported settlement conference. McGowen requests this Court quash service as insufficient,

void, and an abuse ofprocess.

D. This Court Lacks Personal Jurisdiction Over McGowen.

Plaintiff fails to dispute McGowen does not have sufficient minimum contacts with

Nevada for the exercise of personal jurisdiction. Instead, Plaintiff argues only that personal

jurisdiction is proper based on service in Nevada.

The rule Plaintiff asserts, however, applies only where service was Droper. Because

service was improper and therefore void, Plaintiffls argument fails. Based upon all the reasons

explained in the Motion related to lack of sufficient minimum contacts and due process, which

Plaintiff failed to dispute, this Court lacks personal jurisdiction over McGowen, and the

Complaint should be dismissed.

IV. Conclusion.

McGowen is an out-of-state attorney who was tricked into coming to Nevada for a

settlement conference unrelated to this matter and was therefore immune to service. McGowen

was tricked to remain at Sunshine Litigation Services while Plaintiff fìled the Complaint and

received the Summons from the Couft. Based on such trickery, service was insufficient and

therefore void. Fufther, as explained more fully in the Motion, the Declaration of Personal

Service was perjured and should be stricken. Regardless of the Declaration of Personal Service,

Nevada precedent is clear neither Plaintiffs counsel nor his employee may properly serve the

surnmons and cotnplaint. Because McGowen was served by Plaintifls counsel or Plaintiffls

48io-30r5-3798 - 6 -
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secretary, service must be quashed. Additionally, this case must be dismissed for lack of personal

jurisdiction, as Plaintiff bases jurisdiction solely on service of process, which is void. McGowen

requests recovery of his reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred defending against this

trickery and deceit and responding to this Complaint for which there is no jurisdiction.

AFTIRM.{TION
Pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The unclersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated: Apri|6,20l7 SNELL & WILMER r.r.p.

By

/1

úrr*,{ø,/*

,1

Jacey Prupas, Bar No. 9156
Carrie L. Parker, Bar No. 10952
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevada 89501

Attorneys for Defendant James "Jim"
McGowen, erroneously sued as Trustee of
McGowen & Fowler, PLLC

4830-30 I 5-3 798
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CERTIFICATE OF' SERVICE

I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury, that I am over the age of eighteen

(18) years, and I am not a party to, nor interested in, this actions. On this date, I caused to be

served a true and correct copy of the foregoing REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO

QUASH SERVICE AND DISMISS CASE AND REQUEST FOR SANCTIONS by the

method indicated:

XXXru by Court's CM/ECF Program

by U. S. Mail

by Facsimile Transmission

by Overnight Mail

by Federal Express

by Electronic Service

by Hand Delivery

and addressed to the following:

!V. Ch¡is Wicker
Dane W. Anderson
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, NV 89511
Attorney for Plaintiff Steven Crystal

Dated this 6'h day of April, 2017

L.L.P

4830-301 5-3798
-8-
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FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-04-06 01:40:57 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6038401 : yvi
I
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3860
Jacey Prupas, Bar No. 9156
Canie L. Parker, Bar No, 10952
SNELL & V/ILMER r.r.p,
50Ï/est Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevada 89501
Teleplrone: 77 5-785-5440
Facsimile: 77 5-7 85-5441
Email: jprupas@swlaw.com

cparker@swlaw.com

Attorneysþr Defendant James "Jim" McGowen,
erroneously sued as Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,
PLLC

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as
Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
'l'rust,

Plaintiff,

IN THE SNCOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Case No. CV17-00281

Dept. No. 6

l4

()I
dl ?-

:ã I q'1å^

> IHÏ:T
Øii"fi
o I z,i.
a4 lõt z

VS.

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES ll-20,

Defendants.

EPQUEST FCIR SUBMISSION

Defendant James "Jim" McGowen, eroneously sued as Trustee of McGowen &

Fowler, PLLC, ("McGorwen"), by and through his attorneys of record, Snell & Wilmer

L.L.p., hereby submits his Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and Request for Sanctions

filed March I0,2017.

Plaintiff filed his opposition orr March 28,2017 and Defendant filed his reply on April 7,
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AFFIRM.4.TION
Pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain

the social security number of any person,

Dated: April6,2017 SNELL & WILMER r.r.p.

J B¿rNo.9156
L, Bar No. 10952

50 West Liberty Streetn Suite 5 10
Reno, Nevada 89501

Attorneysþr Defendant James "Jim"
McGowen, erroneously sued as Trustee of
McGowen & Fowler, PLLC

By;

484q-7250.9766
t

4PPX000 1 27
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CERTIFICATE O[' SERVICE

I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury, that I am over the age of eighteen

(18) years, and I am not a party to, nor interested in, this action. On this date, I caused to be

served a true and correct copy of the foregoing REQUEST FOR SUtsMISSION by the method

indicated:

XXXXXXX by Court's CM/ECF Program

by U. S. Mail

by Facsimile Transmission

by Overnight Mail

by Federal Express

by Electronic Selice

by Hand Delivery

and addressed to the following:

W. Chris Wicker
Dane W. Anderson
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Roâd, Suite 500
Reno, NV 89511
At t orney þ r P I aint iff Stev en Crystal

Dated this 6tl'day of April, 2017

&. L.L,P
B

-J-
4849-7250-9766
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coDE 1250

FILED
Electronically
cv17-0Q281

2017-04-27 04:24:15 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6073801 : yvi

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Steven B. Crvstal.

Plaintiff,

VS.

Jim McGowen

Case No. cv17-00281

Dept No.15

Defendant

APPLICATION FOR SETTING
TYPE OF ACTION: Declaratory Relief
MATTER TO BE HEARD: Evidentiary Hearinq Settinq
Date of Application :4127117 Made by: Plaintiff

Plaintiff or Defendant
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF: W. Chris Wicker / Dane W. Anderson

COUNSEL FOR DEFEN Carrie Parker

lnstructions: Check the appropriate box. lndicate who id requesting the jury. Estimated No. Of Jurors

[--l¡rry Demanded by (Name):

lKl No Jury Demanded by (Name)

Estimated Duration of Trial:

lsl W. Chris Wicker - consent bv ohone /s/ Carrie Parker - consent bv phone

na

W. Chris Wicker - NV Bar No. 1037 Jacev Prupas - NV Bar No. 9156

Dane W. Anderson - NV Bar No. 6883 Carri e L. Parker NVBarNo.10952

Attorney(s) for Plaintiff

1 1st
-oñ-iñe day of

Attorney(s) for Defendant

Mav2:PM
Setting at

7
Motion - No.

Trial - No

20

-20

JUD 500 (Rev 3/03)

SeIäñõãi- 
-on 

tne day ot

APPXOOOl
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WOODBTJRN A¡iD WËDGÈ:
ûl{)l}Ncrl RoÂd. Surtc iût¡
Rctro. Nc\ada 895 I I

Tcl: {77¡) 1,88-30tì0

2-

APPXOOOl30

OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Woodburn and V/edge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through the Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the APPLICATION FOR SETTING to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq.
Carrie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
Attorneys For Defendant

Dated: Ãpril'27,2017

ee of Woodburn V/edge
By

An
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STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as
Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintifl
VS.

FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-04-27 11'.27:31
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction #

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Case No.

Dept. No.

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC andf or DOES 1-1.0, inclusive;
and DOES 11-20,

Defendants.

ORDER TO SET

This Court reviewed all briefing on Defendant's Motion to Quash Seroice sndDismiss

Case and Request þr Sanctions and determines an evidentiary hearing is necessary. All
witnesses, parties, and attorneys shall be physically present. While this Court requires Mr

McGowen's Presence, he will be immune to any service attempts and his appearance will
not confer personal jurisdiction. The parties shall contact the Department 15 Judicial

Assistant at775-328-3880 within five (5) days to set the evidentiary hearing.

Dated: eprlL1 ,zotz
A,

District Court J

cv17-00281

15

APPXOOOl 31
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FILED
FI

M(77æfø.8 :4 PM
2017

coDE 1250 Tra

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

VS.

Jim McGowen

Case No cv17

Dept. No 15

Defendant.

APPLICATION FOR SETTING
TYPE OF ACTION Declaratorv Reli
MATTER TO BE HEARD: Evidentiarv Hearinq Settinq
Date of Application ;- rÂ¿r.1 , ):>, 7 (>t 7 Made by:

Plaintiff or Defendant
Plaintiff

COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF:W. Chris / Dane W, Anderson

COUNSEL FOR DEFEN Carrie Parker

lnstructions: Check the appropriate box. lndicatê who id requesting the jury. Estimated No. Of Jurors:

l-l¡rty Demanded by (Name):

lrlNo Jury Demanded by (Name):

Estimated Duration of

nt

1

/1

/s/ W Chris \y't/icker - cnnsent hv nhone Parker -

W. Chris Wicker - NV BafNp-l-Q3Z- Jacev Prupas - NV Bar No. 9156

Dane W. Anderson - NV Bar No.6883 Carrie L. Parker. NV Bar No. 10952

Attorney(s) for Plaintiff Attorney(s) for Defendant

i liîo a,,¡ l3 Mav
Motion - No. Setting ãt on the day of

''7
20

-20
No.Trial Setting at on the oay or

JUD 500 (Rev 3/03)
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC andlor DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES II-20,

Petitioner,
VS

THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT, in and for the County of Washoe,
State ofNevada, and THE HONORABLE
DAVID A. HARDY, District Judge,

Respondent,

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Case No.

District Court Case No. CV17-00281

Dept. 15

Real Party in Interest.

PETITION
From the Second Judicial District Court

The Honorable David A. Hardy, District Judge

PETITIONER'S APPENDIX _ VOLUME I

WILLIAM E. PETERSON
Nevada Bar No. 1528
JANINE C. PRUPAS
Nevada Bar No. 9156
CARRIE L. PARKER
Nevada Bar No. 10952

SNELL & WILMER L.L.P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510

Reno, Nevada 89501
Telephone: (77 5) 7 85-5440

E-mail : wpeterson@ swlaw.com
ioruoaslÐswlaw.com
cparker@swlaw.com

Attorneys þr Petitioner

Electronically Filed
Jun 23 2017 09:59 a.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 73312   Document 2017-20912



PageDocument Name Dated Filed Volume

Application for Setting 4127l17 I 4PPX000129-
APPXOOOl30

Application for Setting s13lt7 I APPXOOOl32

4PPX000115-
APPXOOO1 16

Case Assignment
Notiflrcation

4l3l17 I

Complaint 2l9lt7 I APPX000001-
APPXOOOOO3

Declaration of Dane V/.
Anderson in Support of
Opposition to Defendant's
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss and Request for
Sanctions

3l28l17 I 4PPX000108-
APPXOOO1 l l

I
APPX000094-
APPXOOOl03

Declaration of Dianne
Kelling in Support of
Opposition to Defendant' s
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss and Request for
Sanctions

3l28l17

I
APPXO00043-
APPXOOOO52

Declaration of Stephen
Warner in Support of
Opposition to Defendant's
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss and Request for
Sanctions

3l28l17

-2 -



Declaration of Steven B.
Crystal in Support of
Opposition to Defendant's
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss and Request for
Sanctions

3l28l17 I APPX000104-
APPXOOOlOT

Declaration of \M. Chris
\Micker in Support of
Opposition to Defendant's
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss and Request for
Sanctions

3l28lr7 I APPX000053-
APPXOOOO93

Evidentiary Hearing Exhibits sl22l17 II 4PPX000286-
APPXOOO334

Evidentiary Hearing Minutes sl22l17 II APPXO00282-
APPXOOO2S5

Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss Case and Request
for Sanctions

3lr0l17 I APPX000007-
APPXOOOO3O

Notice of Entry of Order s13Ut7 il APPX000387-
APPXOOO392

I 4PPX000031-
APPXOOOO42

Opposition to Defendant's
Motion to Quash Service and
Dismiss Case

3l28l17

APPXOOO l 17Order Accepting
Reassignment

414l17 I

-J-



Order After Hearing sl31l17 II 4PPX000385-
APPXOOO3S6

Order of Recusal of
Presiding Judge and for
Random Reassignment

413lt7 I 4PPX000112-
APPXOOOl 14

Order to Set 4127l17 I APPXOOO 13 1

Reply in Support of Motion
to Quash Service and
Dismiss Case and Request
for Sanctions

4l6l17 I APPX0001 18-
APPXOOO l25

Request for Submission 416l17 I 4PPX000126-
APPXOOOl23

Summons 2l9lt7 I APPX000004-
APPXOOOOO6

Transcript of Proceedings -
Evidentiary Hearing

sltT ltT II 4PPX000133-
APPXOO28l

-4-



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury , that I am over the age of

eighteen (18) years, and I am not aparty to, nor interested in, this action. On June

22,2017, I caused to be served a true and correct copy of the foregoing

PETITIONER'S APPENDIX - VOLUME I upon the following by the method

indicated:

BY E-MAIL: by transmittins via e-mail the document(s) listed
above to the e-mâil addresses-set forth below andlor inclúded on the
Court's Service List for the above-referenced case.

BY U.S. MAIL: bv olacins the document(s) listed above in a sealed
envelooe with oostásè therðon fullv oreoaià.'in the United States mail
at Renð, Nevada adõressed as set forth 6elow.

BY ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION: submitted to the above-entitled
Court for electronic filing and service upon the Court's Service List
for the above-referenced'case.

The Honorable David A. Hardy
Second Judicial District Court
Department 15

75 Court Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

W. Chris Wicker
Dane W. Anderson
V/oodburn and Wedge
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951 I

By: /s/ Hollv W. Lonee
An employee of Snell & Wilmer L.L.P.

-5-
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FILED
Electronica!ly
cv17-00281

2017 -t2-Og 1 1:40; I 4
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of lhe Court

Transaçti<¡n # 55432125t {25
\\:. {jhris \Vickrr. I:isq.

Nr,.ïadí¡ Stars lJitr No. l1)i7
Danc \1. Ânder.strn. l:$q"
Neçad* St¡ltc ll.tr (i883
W t)üDllt-{¡{N 

^Nf:) 
W¡.il)ü¡ :

fi l0{} Neil l{o¡d, Suitc 50û
ßr:n,r. Ncvar.lu 895 I I
'l *lephone: 775-6ft8-30ii0
Ii¡crirnilt': ?75-68å-1088
finrail:
lrnrail: ri;¡itrtr,'¡

Al{*rney$ l'irr l>lainlifl
St¡-.r.cn tlrvst¡¡l

tN't'ltlt Sli('flNl),llil)l('¡^t- DtSl"l{lCl.t (]t)tJlll'ülj ll tU S.l¡\'f"H *lì j\11VÅl)n

¡N ,{NI} l:ÐH 'lHli t:ot iNl'Y cÍ \\'Åsr{0r:

}i'ltiVl]ìr t]. {RYfi'}'",\1., i*clividuoìly arrcl ar
'l rrr$t':ç çi 'l'hi: lladr¡r¿ I". LÌry'st'tl l)cçccl*¡:t
'l'r:tll;{,

(.Ìarcrrtr.: C I/ { 7' t(}Å8 t

[)ept. No.; A
lllaintitJl

JI1'{ þ{C:üÖWliN" '! ¡:ustee t¡}'\'{c{"iorven &
l:orçlcr'. Pl"L"Cl ltr"¡d¡r:r DOI:S l" !û. inclusil'c;
$ñd lxili* 1l-:il,

Ilulcnr.lu*tri.

fip",\'l}ll-åIll[

flli¡ltil'f Stcr'crt ll. Ür1'stal, irrdividri;rtrI¡'arrú es '1'''ustcc oi"l"he []ir¡'ir¡trit l" Cr]''stul

[)ccer]crrt 'li'rrsr ("Cr:;'stll"], tirrougli lti.t cpr¡tl:ltl. \Vrlc'¡cllrurtr nrtcl \\r*dgg. Ùolnpìi¡inli illld

r!legcs as lirllurvsr

l. Cr¡,sr;rl iç 3n inrlir.iiir¡¿rl lr"siiling in l{,":tril. \\'asht¡i Cotlntl'' N{txd3. {'r,rstrrl

*lrrilrlr ¿1¡ irlÌçìresi i¡r ce¡'tlirr ilrol]çr1]' l*c¡t*d ilr I{ct:u" $iislrr:c Crltrrlil'. \eritiirr. :t"

rltscribctl bt:l¡.lrv.

7- Dçlrnri¡1ti Jir¡l ;\,!c(jortcn {."McUorvctt"} is ¡ll in,.iivi.h¡al rç:sirii¡rr: itl lhr

$t:rtc ul'l'cxl:tr, lrut rvlta r,,rir; tthysiiû:ìll"t'¡.:res":trl i¡l W*shtlr, ( ùu¡lt,l'rin l"ebrttur,r tl' ltll;"



I

:

3

{

j

{t

J

I

tl

llì

tl

l)

'_ì

t:

lti

t:

ìrt

lq

;t¡

:t

Li

l.l

l(,

:i

2S
;4L,.tit'*'- 1\'¡, r(ì tr:l

APPXOOOOO2

,4dditionirll1,. Mi. t,Iefio\{cn i.ì th* 'l'r'r¡stuu r¡l' ìvlc{.ìun,ullL l:t¡itler'. Pl.l"{-' ¡rtrlror'

Dclblrclilnts Dr¡t¡s I-10. rvhicfu pe¡'$rlr¡:i çr ilntitic¡* clailn rn i¡Iterc$t ii.: pril¡r';rtl luellcd in

l(c¡t¡¡^ Wasltoc C{.}iln["\," Ncr,arJa, rs fu¡tlrer: (Lrscr'ibc(f bûkrlt. l'he idctttit¡ rrl'lJlre-s l-¡i} i-<

rurfcrlth, nrlt knûrvil to Cr-çstill.

3. 'l'hc trr.rr: rl¿tnles ¿¡rxJ citFr¡citie¡- ¿lcflrnd:¡r:rt Dillj* I I through ll). arr'

ru¡lkn*rvn tu Crl'sløl *l this tirne. t""rystal is inli.rnred a¡ld bclicves and thc'rettl:ult allcgts

th¡t enclr ol'fhc',se IIOJ: Ilctbgdånts nx1"v cluillt *n irìLersr$¡ irr tlie pr*purt.v at issuçr in tiris

litigalion. l'rytial t'Ltquestti lc¡¡r,ü $1'cfiu,rt tr] nnr¡.r¡ld firis ("ÜnTplaint tc¡ i¡tc'l.ud* lhe: l¡:uç

n¡rnlcs ancl t:apaciti*s ot'sr¡L^h ür:lrcnck¡lts lrs suçh itrl'trrnrati¡.r¡r lreconrcs lirlll'kllaq,n ilrd

asr:crlaincrl iry Cr.r';Íuï.

1" fictrv{ic¡r itlJ a*l¿i ?015. {ir'-vsrrrl *rttcr*tl i¡itt¡ iu ¡-:crtain r¡1¡¡¿¡'-:¡111¡111 tritlì

Ito¡l Tlush i"llt¡slr"l ulrd Tyche Act¡uisition.l (irouÐ. lllc. t."'l ;1{i") pr:t'sr.r;rtrt ttt irilic}¡

(ir:ystal \\ias Erallldd cilher a¡l ol\rn{rship rìr'sùcr¡!'il.\' itúcr*si itt certai¡t pt'rìp*rly. irtcluding:

a. i¡9 oi'9 llrt¡nz'e {'nsting Lrl'h'lichclun¡tcir"r 51. l}clcr Piclii¡' {"PiÈi¿}"'}.

tì. I llainting crcelit*r.l t{l llirr¡-: þrr:r; ¡1riul,,'il lry .lackscn lttr!k¡r:li.

idcntiljcd r¡s l[l] ("1]:" ]

.Ì. I Painting crcdited lrr ll;rvc' irceu ¡:airttr:il by Jl.:ksct: l'olf ock.

idcntitisd .a:; ;'iS? t"r"):"')

;' {-lrystal's i¡¡l:cre¡-t in tltcsc' pitr:cs war re tlrr'r:tcd by ;r' t'itÌ{l I l'itlatrcing

5t¡(1:glÇr1l fil*d $ ith llre Ncçacl¡ S*crcli¡l)' ill'Sl¿tc.

{i. {)l* *r ai:oulNs;rrelr¡l':er l4- :{tl-1., l}uslr sold thc al-.¡lr¡ç pi*ecs {ri imrvr¡rk trl

i\'lcür:rt.e¡r lar.t5{XJ.t}Û{J, desplt{: Cn'st¡l's itie¡+st in l}ti¡r* ¡.riects'

''ì . .,\rl aetlral ü(ltltro\r¡''tr:, cxistsi tlclrr.cctt ('r'¡'stll :ur,'1 ltt(ii:lr'ùrl í¡s Io lilL"il:

rclutirc inl*re.çt iir tli*sc pici'cs tri-;tr{rvrrtk.

l{. û1,stal I'rjalL¡ù:;ts l.iuçlici¿tl rJrrtr'r'lrritrlttii¡f; ils l{) 'ri;r: 1l;trttus' ¡'eiittiiq il¡Irt.-\tr

!¡.¡ ¡þçr ¿¡{r¡'rrrk.
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\\il-ll--ltËf {)t{E. Cr¡,staI pla-i r lìrr.iur.ls}tcnI ûs li}lI(i\\,.J:

L l;or ¡ judicial dcelur¿{itrn +l'thc parli*$' rc:lltivü rights anrJ interc*t.t in tltc

Iticta. l!? afld Ql. ¡ìn iìn)' {)tlle¡' :irt\\'r)rk th:r1 IXr.\' lie sr"rb.iect 1O thir: r{lnlrr)r't:rs1r;

Z, I:or a¡'¡ í¡\\i¡rd ol'tlt$r'netr's JLtu íìnd ('o:lts tts iìllurrriid b¡'llv,,1 ¡¡1¡

;ì, l;r¡r such firrrhcr lclirrl'i¡s 1.hc Ci:lr" rnt¡,clrcnr ;r¡:prilpriur.-.

Ål fìr.m ¡rli$n purs u ¡¡ rr r r o N l.l Jì 131) tì.{ìl{J

'l'lt'"' urrtl,lruigncil iJocs hcrub.v ¿ui¡rtr that thc prcceding dr:crtlnent di)ùs rrol {:ûnlr}iti

th* s*cial )-{:curil,y* fir¡¡rlbcr ül'.1ny Fcrfi{¡â"

Dnl'ä): Fchn¡arr 9. iü17" \\'(XllltìtjltN 
^1.\¡Þ 

ql[Düli

lli /sf llanc $r. Å¡rdri¡:xTr
trl." ClrrÍs Wieker, lìx1.
]ruvsd¡Ì St*c lJi¡r ll*. !il-ì'l
[)irrlc \\', .{"nd,:rs,:¡ll. lisri.
NLrr ilds l,J¿r: ¡.*t¡. {r8lli
rtrll{.,r,ìe).t lirr l} f irinti' f I'
Stti'clr Cr¡ stiil
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Tt'. Clhris Wicker. I3sc1.

Ncvada State Êar No. 103?

Dane W" furderscn" Iisq.
Ncvada Far No" 6883
\¡IOODßUI{N,AN D 1VEDçTT
6100 NcilRcad, Suite 500
Reno, Ncvada 8951 I
'l'clcphone: 775-óÍJlì-3000
Facsimilc: 775-688-3088

Ë¡nail:

Ailorneys' fbr Flai¡rti fl
Sleven Crystal

*'ËâffilreÉl* FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-02-09 02'.23'.50
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
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lN TI"I-E SECÛND JI]DICTI{L DISTRTCT COUIIT OI? THE S1'41'b CIT NËV,{I]/\

IN AND FÖR:l'H¡i COUNTY OF W,'\'SFltE

Transaction # 5943908

S1ËVEN Il. CRYSI¿L, individually and as

ol'The Barbara L. Crys1al Dçceclent Case
'l'r¡st,

Dept. No.
Plainrit'f,

v.

JltuI MC{IO1N. Trnstcç of lv{cGowen &
Fowler" IILLC and/gr DOËS 1-10, inclusive;
andDOES ll-20,

De{Þndants"

suMlqoNs
IJI[{ NICGOWIN. T$rstqe of McGowe{ & Fowk:r¡ PLLCI

TO TIIE DEFENDANT: YÛti I{AYE BBEN SUSI}. TIIË CTURT tl{AY DECTDE

¡{G¡llNST YÛU }VI'THOUT YOUR BETNG ITE-TRI} UNLESS YTU RESTOND IN
WITHJN 30 DÀYS. REAI} T}IE INFGRIII.Å'TION BALT1V VËRY

7-ñ>{'{

CA-TIEFULI,Y.

A civil complai:rt or pelition lras been lìlecl by thc plaintiff against you for rclief âs

s*t tì:rlh in thut duüulncnt {sec cumptainr}. \l"hen servics is by publicafion. add a lrriel'

stâternerrt of'tlre objcct of the aclion. Sec Nevatja llules tlf CivïlProcedure, Rulc 4{b)'

'fhe abject of this åtl¡u1 is: 
- -..-.- ---.--*
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4.

Il'you intencl tei dei'et"ld ihis larvsuit, )iou must do the lbllorving rvithin 30
calendar days after sç.rl ice of this $urnntons: exclusive ûl' the da1, ol
service:

^. File rvirh the Clerk of this Court, rvhosc address is shr:wn betow, a
forrnal ryrÍften ânswer to the complaint or pctition, along with the
appropriale filing fees, in accord¿nce rvith the rulcs of the Court,
anrJ;

b. Serve a copy r:f your âns\ver upon the ¿ltforney r:r plaintifì{s) whosc
Rame and adnlress is shown lrelorv"

2. Unless you respond, a default will be €nxered upon applir:íúion ol'
'the plaintiff(s) and this Courr mây Êüter,å judgment againsr you lbr
the rclief demanded ín Xhe cornplaint or petition"

Ðatedr tt iuQ$uy c¡f }ìebruary ,20tr7.

JACQUELINE tlttYÁ.Nf'
CI.ER,K OF

Deputy
SECONÐ coutl'l'
75

lssued on behalf ÐllPlaintilli

W. Chris Sfieker, Ësq.
Ner:ada Stat*: 8ar Na. 1037
þåne

}YOODBURN ANN WENGE
ó10û Neil Road, $uite 500
Renoo Ncvada 895 l I
Telephone: 775-6&8-30ü{l
f:acsimile: ?75-688-3t88
Þrrail:

Attorneys {ior Plajn}ilT
Steven Crystnl

l; : '11
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S'TAIE OF NNVÅTJA"

COUNTY OT ï/AS}IÐE

cleclare:
person

1. That I åtm nfft å pîrty to this acÍ¡on ancl I am over 18 years of age.

2.. "thar I personally served a copy of the ,$a¡nnto¡ts ttttd Complatnt and rhe
lbllowing docunents:

J i ¡rr- TfrtGr tr3 ã n " at the follorving
{Name of Defi:ndant who was served}

address:

DDCLAIIAT IO:\ OF PIIRSON¡\ L SERVICß
(1'o be lìll efenclanr)

on rhe QFlay or: Ët,!*.ura rJ ,?an.
(Month) I (vear)

llhis docurnent does nol contain the Social $iecurity Number of any person.

I declare, undèr penalty of perjury under the larv of the State of Nevada. that the
foregoing is true and cr¡rrect.

(Signatrre ol' persr:rn rvho completed

)
)
)

T,
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FILED
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Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 5991254: csule,
I

2

J

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

i1

l2

13

t4

$239s
Jacey Prupas, Bar No. 91 56
Carrie L. Parker, Bar No. 10952
SNELL & WILMER r.r.p.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevada 89501
Telephone: 77 5-785-5444
Facsimile: 77 5-7 85-5441
Email : jprupas@swlaw.corn

cparker@swlaw.com

Attorneysþr Defendant James "Jim" McGowen,
erroneously sued as Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,
PLLC

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF''THE SI'A.TE OF'NEVAD.'\

IN AND FORTHE COUNTY OT'\ryASHOE

STEVEN B. CRYSTAI-, individually and as

Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintiff,

Case No. CV17-00281

Dept. No. 6l-

F

x
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VS

JIM MCGOV/EN,1'rustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES l-10, inclusive;
and DOES ll-20,

Defendants.

Defendant James "Jim" McGowen, erroneously sued as Trustee of McGowen & Fowler,

PLLC, ("McGowen"), by and through undersigned counsel, hereby files this Motion to Quash

Service and Dismiss Case and Request for Sanctions ("Motion"). This Motion is based upon

Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure ("NRCP"> 12, the following memorandum of points and

authorities, the Declaration of James McGowerl in Support of Motion to Quash Service and

Dismiss Case and fbr Sanctions ("McGowen Decl,") attached hereto as Exhit¡it l, and any oral

argument this Court may entertain,
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MEMORANDUM OF' POI.N'I]S AND AUTHORJTIES

I. Introductio4

This Court should quash service and dismiss this case for multiple reasons, McGowen is

a resident of Texas, who was tricked into coming to Reno, Nevada for a purported settlement

conference regarding another unrelated matter. After McGowen arrived in Reno per an invitation

to the purported settlement conference, Plaintiff filed the instant Complaint, and Plaintiffs

counsel himself hand served McGowen the Summons and Complaint. Plaintiff filed a perjured

affìdavit of service, indicating staff for Plaintiff s counsel served the Summons, which is not true.

Neither Plaintiffs counsel nor an employee of Plaintiffs counsel may effectuate service.

Trickery and deceit should not be tolerated.

Assuming, arguendo, service was proper, and to preserve jurisdictional arguments, this

Court does not have personal jurisdiction over McGowen because he does not have sufficient

minimum contacts with Nevada or Washoe County to confer personal jurisdiction, neither general

jurisdiction nor specific jurisdiction. Indeed, the Complaint does not allege any Nevada contacts

as a basis for jurisdiciion, but merely asserts McGowen was present in Reno, Nevada on February

9,2017, which is the day McGowen was tricked to be in Reno. McGowen respectfully requests

that this Court quash service and dismiss this case for lack of personal jurisdiction.

U. Frctu¡l Bnekgrsgnd

McGowen disputes Plaintiffs allegations in the Complaint and summarizes Plaintiffs

allegations for illustrative purposes only. Plaintiff alleges McGowen purchased artwork from

Ron Bush on or about November 14,2014. Complaint, !f6. Plaintiff further alleges he acquired

security interests in the aftwork at issue through certain transactions between 2013 and 2015 with

Bush and Tyche Acquisitions Group, Inc. ("Tyche"). Complaint, lf4. The Complaint does not

clearly indicate whether the purported security interest was acquired before or after the 2014

alleged sale to McGowen. While the Complaint alleges a UCC I financing statement, it fails to

provide any details of the financing statement, including a description of property purportedly

secured or even the date of the financing statement.

4830-6278-8933 '2 '
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In April 2016, Plaintiff fìled a Complaint against Bush and Tyche in the Second Judicial

District Court, Case No, CVl6-00865 (Dept. 4), alleging claims for breach of contract, ciaim and

delivery, and writs of attachment or garnishment. The instant Complaint appears to be an attempt

by Plaintiff to pull McGowen, artd probably his clients, into that dispute between Plaintiff on the

one side and Bush and Tyche on the other.

McGowen is an attorney and resident of Texas. Exhibit 1, f'1ll-3. McGowen is not

licensed to practice law in Nevada, does not live in Nevada, and has never lived in Nevada. 1d. at

1J4. McGowen does not own any property in Nevada and does not conduct business in Nevada.

Id. at\\4-5.

Bush's attomey, Steve Defilippis, recently contacted McGowen's client and requested he

come to Reno, Nevada for a settlement conference unrelated to the artwork at issue in the instant

matter. Id. at \6. McGowen's sole purpose and intent in coming to Reno was to attend the

purported settlement conference, which McGowen was told would be held on February 9,2017,

Id. at l7 . After McGowen arrived in Reno, on February 9, 2017, Defilippis and tsush informed

him there was a deposition occurring that they thought he would be interested in and encouraged

McGowen to attend before the settlement conference, Id. at t|8, The settlement conference and

deposition were both scheduled to take place on February 9, 2017 in Reno, Nevada. Id.

Plaintiffs counsel, Chris V/icker, was taking the deposition, and Plaintiff and Bush were in

attendance. Id. at 19. Bush's attorneys Defilippis and Bert Terrari were also present at the

deposition. /d. McGowen attended the deposition, which turned out to have nothing to do with

McGowen, his clients, or artwork (the purported subject matter of the instant Complaint). 1d, at

'l]J10. No question was relevant to McGowen, and McGowen did not participate in the deposition.

Id. There seemed to be no legitimate reason for McGowen to have been invited to the deposition.

Indeed, as the events of that day unfolded, it became appal'ent there was actually a sinister re¿ìson

to keep him there.

The deposition continued through the moming, there was a lunch break, and then the

deposition continued after lunch. Id. at \11. During the lunch break, Terrari talked to Wicker.

Id. In the aflemoon, while this deposition was occuming, Plaintifls counsel, l)ane Anderson,
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arrived and appeared to liand something to Wicker, who had been taking the deposition' Id. al

\12. AfÌer the deposition concluded, 'lenari and V/icker spoke outside the room where the

deposition was being laken. Id. at {13. When Terrari returned, he told McGowen that Wicker

neeclecl to speak with him. Id. Wicker then hand served McGowen the Summons and Complaint

in the instant matter. Id. Wicker informed McGowen that he needed to know more about

McGowen's clients and acoused them of "taking" atl that belonged to Plaintiff. Id. at\14'

In other words, Plaintiff tricked McGowen, a lawyer, into staying at a location in Reno so

that he could gin up a Complaint against him and serve him, in hopes of learning more about

McGowen's clients. Based on the frequent conversations between Plaintiff s counsel and Bush's

counsel, it appears they may have conspired to trick McGowen to come to Reno in the first place.

Plaintiff knew McGowen was at Sunshine Litigation Services, and Plaintifls counsel kept him

there all day while his partner causecl the Complaint to be filed against him and a Summons to be

issued. The Complaint in this case is file stamped as having been filed on February 9,2017 at

I l:40 a.m. This corresponds with McGowen's recollection attested to in his Declaration and the

overall scheme of getting the Complaint filed and Summons issued while McGowen was in Reno'

Plaintiff s counsel personally hand delivered the Summons and caused the executed Summous to

be filed the same day, at2:23 p.m. In light of this trickery, McGowen rebooked his flight back to

Texas for an earlier flight and left Reno that aftemoon. Id. at tf15. McGowen did not attend any

settlement conference that day. Id,

After his retum to Texas, McGowen learned that Plaintiff filed a Declaration of Personal

Service, signed by Dianne M. Kelling. Dianne M. Kelling is an empioyee of Woodbum and

Wedge, Plaintiff s counsel. Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of Crystal's

Motion for Appointment of Receiver in Crystal v. Bush, Case No. CV16-00865, which includes a

certificate of service signed by Kelling as an employee of Woodburn and 'ù/edge.l Wicker, not a

womal1 handed the Summons and Complaint to McGowen, who is certain no woman served him.

Id. atfllj.. Rather than have a disinterested party serve McGo\ryetl, as the rules require, Plaintiff s

counsel himself served lvlcGowen and had his assistant sign the declaration as if she effectuated

I This Court may take judicial notice of Certifìcate of Service filed in Case No. CV16-00865.

4.3o-6278-Bsi3 - 4 -

APPXOOOO,l O



þ
U

,d

=(a

an

I

t,,
ILùl9Ì

}E

I'

ù',4
bì
fd

I

2

J

4

5

6

7

I
9

t0

ll
l2

13

T4

l5

16

17

18

19

20

2T

'))

23

24

25

26

27

28

service (which is still prohibited by the rules). Thus, the trickery and deceit continued beyond

tricking McGowen to be in Reno and stay here to be served, and it resulted in the hling of a

perjured Declaration of Personal Service,

III. I,egal Àreument

A. Standard of Review

NRCP 12(b) provides for a motion to dismiss based on insufficient process, insufficient

service of process, and lack of personal jurisdiction. Process is invalid where a defendant has

been lured into a foreign jurisdiction by trickery. Coyne v. Grupo Indus. Triem, S.A. de C.V.,105

F.R.D. 627,629 (D,D.C. l9S5), Further, service of process is invalid if it is not served by a

whollydisinterestedperson. NevodaCornellsilver Minesv. Hankins,5l Nev' 410,279P.27,30

(lg2g). A motion to dismiss based upon insufficient process and insuffìcient service of process is

directed to the Court's discretion not to exercise power over the defendant and to further the

administration of justice. Coyne, 105 F.R.D. at 629 '

Regarding a motion to dismiss based on lack of personal jurisdiction, "the plaintiff has the

burden of introducing competent evidence of essential facts which establish a prima facie

showing that personal jurisdiction exists." Trump v, Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct.,l09 Nev. 687, 692,857

P.zd 740,743 (1993), At the prima facie stage, the detbndant has no burden; instead, the

plaintiff must produce "some evidence," such as affidavits, to support all facts necessary for a

findirrg of personal jurisdiction. Id. at 692,857 P.2d ar744.

B. PlaintifPs Perjured Declaration of service should Be stricken.

NRCP 4(g) requires proof of seruice of the Summons and Complaint. Plaintiff filed a

Declaration of Personal Service stating Kelling served McGowen at Sunshine Litigation Services

on February g,2017. I-Iowever, Wicker hand delivered the Summons and Complaint to

McGowen. McGowen Decl., tf13. Plainti{fls Declaration of Personal Service is perjured and

should be stricken.

C. Process r#as Insufficient Based upon Trickery and Deceit.

"The rule that process is invalid where a defendant has been lured into a jurisdiction has

been applied f'or more than 100 yeaïs." Coyne, 105 F'R'D aT 629. Indeed, "[i]t is almost

4830-6278-8933 
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universally held in other jurisdictions that if a person is induced by artifice, trick or fraud to come

within the jurisdiction of a court for the purpose of obtaining service of process upon him, and

process in an action brought against him in such court is there served, it is an abuse of legal

process, void, and will be set aside." Empire Mfg. Co. v, Ginsburg,253 lll. App. 242, 24'l $ll,

App, Ct, 1929). Additionally, 'owitnesses, suitors, and their attorneys, while in attendance in

connection with the conduct of one suit, are immune from service of process inanotber," Lamb

v. Schmitt,285 U.S. 222,225 (1932).

Courts consider not only whether the defendant was induced to enter the jurisdiction by

fraud but also whether defendant was tricked into remaining long enough to be served. Buchanan

v. lYilson,254 F.2d 849, 850 (6th Cir. 1958). For example, in Buchanan, the Sixth Circuit Court

of Appeals affirmed the lower court's decision to quash service as abuse of process, noting that

the non'resident defendant had not been induced by artifice to enter the jurisdiction, but "having

come within the jurisdiction he was induced by artifice, and for the sole purpose of subjecting

him to service of summons, to come to a ceúain place within the jurisdiction, and was there

induced, by artifice, to remain until a deputy sheriff could arrive and make service of summons

upon him." 1d,

In this case, McGolven was induced by artifice, trickery, and deceit both to enter the

jurisdiction and to remain long enough to be handed the Summons and Complaint. McGowen

was tricked to come to Reno for a purported settlement conference in an unrelatecl matter. This is

the only reason McGowen came to Reno. Under Lamb, McGowen was immune from process

because he came to Reno as counsel in an unrelated mattel. Fuúher, McGowen was tricked to

remain at Sunshine Litigation Services for a deposition that was not relevant to him or his clients

and to remain after a lunch break so that Plaintiff could have enough time to both file the

Complaint and deliver the Summons and Complaint to McGowen while he was at Sunshine

Litigation Services. McGowen requests that this Court find that McGowen \ryas immune from

process when he came to Reno in good faith for the purported settlement conference. McGowen

further requests that this Court quash service as insuffìcient, void, and an abuse ofprocess.

4.3o-6278-8s33 - 6 -
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D" Service Was Insufficient Because the Summons anel Complaint Were Not
Served by a Disinterested Person.

NRCP 4(c) requires "þlrocess shall be served by the sheriff of the county where the

defendant is found, or by a deputy, or by any person who is not a'party and who is over 18 years

of age...." NRCP 4(c) (emphasis added). The person serving process must be a "wholly

disinterested person." Nevada Cornell Silver Mines v. Hankins,5l Nev. 410,279 P' 27,30

(1929), Otherwise, "there would be great danger of abuse and inducement to the person making

the service to make a false return, and thereby put himself in a position to obtain judgment by

default or some other undue advantage over the opposite party..." Id. Service many times

"becomes a battle of credibility and testimony." Sawyer v. Sugarless Shops, Inc.,106 Nev. 265,

269-70,792 P.2d, 14, l7 (1990), This rule prohibits the individual party, as .T.v.çll gs sn âsent of

the party. irrqluding his 4üQlpey or a¡r employee of"..his attorney. from effectuating service of

process. Id. at270,792P.zd at 17 ("something as fundamental and decisive as service is best

taken away from the parties or their counsel or counsel's employees."). Thus, neither Plaintiff s

counsel, Wicker, nor counsel's employee, Kelling, may effectuate service.

Service ofjurisdictional notice by a person who is not disinterested is no service or notice

at all. Nevada Cornell Silver Mines,279 P. at 30. Plaintiff filed a Declaration of Personal

Service stating Kelling served the Summons and Complaint. Even assuming arguendo, Kelling

was the one who delivered the Summons and Complaint to McGowen,2 such service was in

violation of NRCP 4(c) and therefore void. Accordingly, McGowen requests that this Court

quash service of the Summons and Complaint.

E. This Court Lacks Personal Jurisdiction Over McGowen.

Nevada's long-arm statute permits personal jurisdiction over a nonresident defendant

unless the exercise of jurisdiction would violate due process. NRS 14.065 Levinson v. Second

Jud. Dist. Ct., 103 Nev. 404, 4A6, ?42 P.2d 1024, 1025 (19S7), "Due process requires minimum

contacts between the defendant and the forum state such that the maintenance of the suit does not

2 As explained more fully above, the Declaration of Service was not true. Wicker is the individual who personally

hand served McGowen the Summons and Complaint. McGowen Decl'' ti13.

4,3o-6278-sg33 '7 -
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offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice." Trump v. Eighth Jud. Díst. Ct., 109

Nev. 687, 698,857 P.2d740,747 Qllev, 1993). The defendant's conduct and connection with the

forum nrust be "such that he should reasonably anticipate" being sued there, Consipio Ilolding,

BV v. Carlberg,282 P.3d 751, 754 (Ì.{ev. 2012) (quoting l{orld-l|tide Volluwagen Corp. v'

Vf/oo ds on, 444 U.S. 286, 297, 1 00 S.Ct. 559, 567 (l 980)).

Personal jurisdiction may be either general or specific. Trump,109 Nev, at 699,857 P.2d

at 748. General jurisdiction occurs where a defendant is held to answer in a forum for causes of

action unrelated to the defendant's forum activities. Id, Absent general jurisdiction, specific

personal jurisdiction over a defendant may be established where the cause of action arises from

the defendant's contacts with the forum. Id. This Court has neither general nor specific

jurisdiction over McGowen.

1. This Court does not have general jurisdiction over McGowen.

General personal jurisdiction over the defendant "is appropriate where the defendant's

forum activities are so substantial or continuous and systematic that it may be deemed present in

the forum." Budget Rent-A-Car v, Eighth Jud. Dist. Cr., 108 Nev. 483, 485, 835 P,2d 17,19

(1992). Even ifsubstantial, or continuous and systematic contacts exist, the assertion ofgeneral

jurisdiction must be reasonable. Amoco Egtpt Oil Co. v. Leonis Navigatìon Co., I F,3d 848, 852-

53 (9th Cir. 1993). "The level of contact with the forum state necessary to establish general

jurisdiction is high." Budget Rent-A-Car,l08 Nev, at 485, 835 P'2d at 19-

Plaintiff s Complaint fails to allege any indicia of general jurisdiction. This failure is an

implicit recognition that general jurisdiction does not in fact exist. General jurisdiction

"approximates physical presence" in the forum stale. Bancroft & Masters, Inc. v. Augusta Nat'l

hnc.,223 F.3d 1082, 10S6 (9th Cir. 2000). The plaintiff must demonstrate that the defendant

conducts activities, solicits business, holds a license, or engages in activities that essentially

places him physically in the forum state. In re llestern States ll'holesale Natural Gas Litigalion'

605 F.Supp. 2d 1118, 1131 (D. Nev. 2009) (citing Int'l Shoe Co v. llashington,326 U'S. 310,

3 I 5 (1 945)). A few business or personal trips to Nevada do not establish general jurisdiction over

nonresident defendants. Laxalt v. McClatchy, 622 F.Supp , 737 ,7 42 (D. Nev' I 985).

4$a-6278-Bs3r 
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In this case, Plaintifï alleges a single trip to Nevada. As previously explained, this trip

was induced by trickery and deceit. McGowen is not a resident of Nevada, has never lived in

Nevada, does not conduct business in Nevada, and does not own any real property in Nevada.

McGowen Decl., tflf l-5, This Court does not have general jurisdiction over McGowen.

2, This Court does not have specific personal jurisdiction over McGowen.

Absent general jurisdiction, specific personal jurisdiction over a defendant may be

established only where the cause of action arises from the defendant's contacts with the forum.

Budget Rent-A-Car, 108, Nev. at 486,835 P.2d at 20. "A. state may exercise specific personal

jurisdiction only where: (1) the defendant purposefully avails himself of the privilege of serving

the market in the forum, or of enjoying the protection of the laws of the forum, or where the

defendant purposefully establishes contacts with the forurn state and affirmatively directs conduct

toward the forum state, and (2) the cause of action arises from that purposeful contact with the

forum or conduct taryeling the forum." Trump, 109 Nev. at 699'700, 857 P.zd aI 748'49.

Additionally, those actions or the consequences of those actions must have a substantial enough

connection with Nevada to make the exercise of jurisdiction by a Nevada court reasonable. Id.

The focus must be "on the relationship among the defendant, the forum, and the litigation within

the particular factual context of each case." Core-Venl Corp. v. Nobel Indus, AB,ll F'3d 1482

(9th Cir. 1993).

Where the complained of activities did not take place in the forum, the only other way to

satisfy the first prong of specific jurisdiction is to show that the effects of the complained-of

activity were felt in or aimed at the forum. Pebble Beach Co. v. Caddy, 453 F.3d 1151, I156 (9th

Cir. 2006) (citing Calder v. Jones,465 U.S. ?S3 (19S4). Under tl¡e Calder effects test, Plaintiff

must show that the defendant "(l) committed an intentional act; (2) expressly aimed at the forum

state; (3) causing harm that the defendant knows is likely to be suffered in the forum state. 1d.

The Calder effects test requires "something more" than simply showing it is foreseeable that a

certain act will cause harm in the forum. 1'here must be a showing that the complained-of act was

directly aimed at the forum and that the defendant "individually targeted the forum" by his

actions. Id.; Global Verge, Inc. v. Rodgers,201l WL 70611 (D, Nev.2011) (citing Calder v'

4*3o-ó2?8-8e33 
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Jones, 465 U.S. 783 (1984).

PlaintifT must show that he would not have suffered an injury "but for" McGowen's

fb$nr-relatccl c.oncluet. Omeluk v. Lang.rten Slip & Batbyggeri A/5, 52 F.3d 267, 272 (gth Cir.

1995) (concluding that where the plaintiff would have suffered the same injuries even if none of

the alleged forum contacts had taken place, the plaintiff failed to meet the "but for" test);

Menalco, FZE v. Buchan,602 F. Supp. 2d 1 I86, I 193 (D. Nev. 2009). Moreover, the fact that

Plaintiff is a resident of the forum is not enough to satisff minimum contacts or the effects test.

Cas. Assurqnce Risk Ins. Brokerage Co. v, Dillon,976 F .2d 596 599 (9th Cir. 1992); accord Dole

Food Co., Inc. v. llatts, 303 F,3d 1 104, 1 I I -14 (9th Cir. 2002). Federal jurisprudence addressing

due process concerns ofpersonal jurisdiction establishes that even ifthe plaintiffis a resident of

the forum and harm is felt in the forum, the expreållaimj may not necessarily be at the forum. .9ee

Schwarzenegger y. Fred Martin Motor Co., 374 F .3d 797, 807 (gth Cir. 2004) (concluding that

the defendant's express aim was not at the forum because the purpose of the advertisement at

issue was to affect Ohio markets---€ven though this intentional act eventually caused harm to the

plaintiff (a forum resident in Calif'ornia) in the forum, and the defendant may have known the

plaintiff lived in the forurn).

Plaintiff fails to establish "a specific and direct relationship" between the forum and the

cause of action. See Trump,109 Nev. at 700, 857 P.2d at 748, Plaintiff fails to allege any

activities by McGowen expressly directed at Nevada. For example, Plaintiff does not allege the

alleged transaction betrveen Bush and McGowen (the alleged basis of the cause of action)

occurred in Nevada, ,See Complaint, fl6. The Complaint in this case is completely devoid of any

allegations that would satisry the Calder effects test. First, Plaintiff does not allege any

intentional wrongful act. Plaintiff alleges only that a third party (Bush) sold artwork to

McGowen "despite Crystal's interest in those pieces." Complaint, !f6. Plaintiff does not allege

any action or intent on McGowen's part. Second, the Complaint does not allege any facts

showing McGowen expressly aimed any intentional wrongful act at Nevada. Third, the

Complaint does not allege any knowledge on McGowen's part that harm would likely be suffered

in Nevada. Plaintiff does not allege any conduct by McGowen in Nevada. McGowen should not

4g3o-6278-8s33 
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reasonably anticipate, and never anticipated, being sued in Nevada. See Consipío Holding, BV,

282P.3d at754.

Plaintiff fails to establish sufficient minimum contacts for this Court to exercise personal

jurisdiction over McGowen, a Texas resident, who was tricked into coming to Nevada in the first

place. To exercise perconal jurisdiction over McGowen would offend traditional notions of fair

play and justice and would violate due process. Accordingly, McGowen respectfully requests

that the Complaint be dismissed for lack of personal jurisdiction.

ry. Conclusion.

McGowen is an out-of-state attomey who was tricked into coming to Nevada for a

settlement conference unrelated to this matter and was therefore immune to service for this

matter. Additionally, McGowen was tricked to remain at Sunshine Litigation Services while

Plaintiff frled the Complaint and received the Summons from the Court. Based on such trickery,

service was insufficient and therefore void. Further, the Declaration of Personal Service was

perjured and should be stricken. Regardless of the Declaration of Personal Service, neither

Plaintiff s counsel nor an employee of Plaintiff s counsel may properly serve the Summons and

Complaint. For all of these reasons, each of which is independently sufficient, McGowen

requests service be quashed.

4s3o-6278-8e33 
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Assuming arguendo service were sufhcient, this Court may not exercise personal

jurisdiction over McGowen because he lacks suffìcient minimum contacts with Nevada, and the

exercise of personal jurisdiction would be a violation of due process. Accordingly, McGowen

requests that this case be dismissed. Finally, McGowen requests recovery of his reasonable

attorney fees and costs incuned defending against this trickery and deceit and this Complaint for

which there is no jurisdiction.
AFFIRMATION

Pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affrrm that the preceding document does not contain

the social security number of any person,

Dated: Ma¡ch 10,2017 SNELL & WILMER r.r.p.

,f&LBy:

L.
Bar No.

, Bar No. 10952
50 West Liberfy Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevada 89501

ÁÌtarnevs for Defendanl ,IüMes "Jim"
McGovien, emoüeously sued as Trustee of
McGowen & Fowler, PLLC

4830-6278-8933
-12-
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ÇERTIFICATE OT' SDRVICE

I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury, that i arn over the age of eighteen

(18) years, and I am not a party to, nor interested in, this action. On this date, I caused to be

served a true and correct copy of the foregoing MOTION TO QUASH SDRVICE AND

DISMISS CASE AND REQUEST rOR SANCTIONS by the method indicated:

XXXXICXX by Court's Clvf/ECF Program

by U. S. Mail

by Facsimile Transmission

by Overnight Mail

by Federal Express

by Electronic Service

by Hand Delivery

and addressed to the following

W. Chris Wicker
Dane W. Anderson
V/OODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, NV 89511
Attorney for Plaintiff Steven Crystal

Dated this lOth day of March, 2017.

&,

- 13 -
4830-6278-8933
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ïxrullrr t.I$T

Declaration of James McGowen in Support of Motion to Quash Service
and Dismis.s Case and for Sanctions

Motion for Appointment of Receiver in Crystal v. Bush, Case No. CV16-00865,
which includes a certificate of service signed by Dianne M. Kelling
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STË.VEN B. CRYSTAL. individually anrl as

Trustee r:f the Ba¡bara L.. Crystal Dcccdcnl
Trust.

1520
J*cey Prupas. Bar No.9156
Curric L, Purker, Bar lio, 10!152
SNB[.L & WlL.MER t".r".t'.

50 West Libertv Street, Suite 510
Reno, Nevadr¡ 89501
Telephonc: 77 5-785-544{l
Facsimile; 77 5-V85-5441
Email : jprupas@lswl arv. com

cparker@swlaw.conr

.rl t lo rne,ys fo r I) cfe nd an t J u nrcs " Jin " M t: G otç e n,
errone.rsuslrv tnxrl us ?ir;stev ,s.f Mc(ìr-tv,en 4t Fov,let,
PLLC

IN THE SECÛND JUDICTAL ÐISTRICT C'(}URT OT T:HT: STÁ'TE, OF NEViTD,\

IN A.NI} FOR'TIIE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Case Nrl. CV17-01)281

Dept. No. 6
Plaintifl

vs.

Jltvl h,{CGOS/Ë.N.'l'rustee of McÛorven &
Forvler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusivei
and DOËS l1-20,

Dcfendants.

roN

I. James Mcçowen, <icctüre undcr pcnalty of pcrjury of the l*w of thc State *f Nev¿da th¡rt

tlte foregoing is true $nd ctrect:

1- I am an atto$tcy licensed to practicc law in T'exas,

Z. i ¡m a partrrer ot'McGowen & Forr4cr" PLLC, ivhich is my law firm" lncated in

Texas.

3. I líve ¡nd work in Texi¡s, and I arn a resident of Texas'

þ' ':.Yl'"
EI i7,:ã I u"li-
Þllli:;
,¿'i'Jii\.

I i/ !!'

Ol :J
Ll iìtt)t ;

,182+-li)4¡-6?l:
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4. I clo nol livc in Nevada. I have never lived in Nevada" I arrr rrçrl liccnscd to practice

la*' in Nevada, ancl I do not conrluc-t br¡sincss in Nevada.

5. I do not o\¡/n any rcal property iÍ¡ Nevad*,

6. ll.on Bush and his tÕunsel, Steve Delilippìs- recently contacted a client of mine

and requcstetl that rny client an<l I come t<l Rsno. Ncvada -fbr a settlement contbrence unrclated to

the artwork at issue in the instant mallcr.

7. My stile purp$se ¿ntl intcnt irr corning to Reno. was fo attend thc purportcd

.scttleme*t confbrence, which I was told would be held on Fehruary t),2017 
.

8. On Frehruary 9,2017. Defilippis and Bush infrrmred *re there was a clcposition

occurring that they thaught I woulcl be interested in and oncouraged me to attend heforc the

settlen:ent tt'¡nfercnce. Tl¡e settlement conference and dcpotitìon were both schcduled to take

place on F'ebru*ry 9,2017 in Reno, Nevada,

9. Steven CryslaÏ's counscl) Chris Wicker, was taking llre dçositirrn. anrf Crystal nnrl

Bush *,ere i¡r attendzursc. Bush's attomeys, Defilippís antl Bsñ Terari wercr also present at the

deposition"

10. I attcnded ttre deposition, which tumed oul to havc nothirrg to do with mq my

clieuts, or the artwork that is the purported sulrject matter of the instant Lìomplaint" Nc qucstion

was relevanl to rnei ancl I did not pârtiÈipate in the rjeposition.

I l- The clepositio¡r contínr¡ed thrrrugh the moming, there w¿s a lunch hreak. anrl then

the deposition continued after lunch. During the lunch break, Tcrrari talked to w*icker.

1?. In the afternoon, while tlris deposition was osourring, Crystal's counsel, Ðane

Antlc¡sori, arrivecl and appeared tr: hancl something fo'Wicker.

13. After the deposìtion concludcd, Tcrrari and Wicker spake or"rtsicie the rç<lr¡ rvhere

the rlepr:sitir:n rvas being taken. When Terrari retumed. hs told rne that V/icker neerfcrl to .,;pcak

wi*r me. T#ickcr hand scrved me the Surnrnons and Complaìnt in the instant malter, i an.r ccrtain

no wùrniÌn sened mc with the Sumrnons and Llonplaint.

14. Wicker intonned me that he needed lo kncw more about rnv clients and accrrsed

the¡r'r of "lakirrg" :ut that beÌonged ¡6 frystal.

.t.le-Ió.1E,ó2ti -'' -
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15. I rcbooked my fligfrt back to Tc.'<as lbr an eariier flrght, and left th¿ìt atlernoon. I

did not attcnd any settlement ccnf'ercnçe thaf day.

16. I declare under the penalty of perjury under the law of tho State of Nevarla that the

foregoing is true and c¡-¡rrect.

Execute<l nis 14! aavof March" 2017 in Texas.

.).rs29-t 648-ót t2
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FILED
Electronically
cv16-00865

201 6-09-09 03:'l 9:48 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 57005152490
l/. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Andersor¡ Esq.
Ncvada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 89511
Telephone: 775-688-3 000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwi cker@woodburandwed ge, com
clanderson@woodburnandwed ge, com
Attorneys for Steven B. Crystal, Automated
Cash Systems and Automated Cashless Systems

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL,Individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintifl

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FORTHE COT.INTY OF WASHOE

Case No.: CV16-00865

Dept. No.:4

RONALD G.'.RON" BUSH, an individual;
TYCHE ACQUISITIONS GROLIP,INC., a
Nevada corporation; RENAISSANCE
MASTERS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
conìpany; CLASSIC FINE ART, LLC,a
Nevada limited liability company; TYCHE
ART INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Nevada
corporation; and DOES I -20, inclusive,

Defendants.
AND RELATED CLAIMS

MOTION ÄPPOINTMENT OF RRCEIVNR

Plainriff, STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as Trustee of The Barbara L.

Crystal Decedent Trust ("Crystaì"), through his counsel, WOODBURN AND WEDGE,

moves this Court pursuant to NRS 32.010 for an o¡der appointing a receiver f-or the purpose of

collecting, preserving and liquidating the artwork at issue in this case lo satisfu the

outstanding obligations owed to Crystal by the defendants. This motion is supported by the
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follorving memorandum of points and authorities and the pleadings and papers on file in this

matter.

I. INTRODUCTION

The facts supporting this motion have been presented to the Court by affidavit and

deposition testimony, as well as direct testimony zurd exhibits from multipie hearings. The

Court has found that Crystal is likely to prevail on the merits of his underlying contract claims

against defendants, and that he is likely 1o suffþr irreparable harm in the absence of an

injunction because the artwork at issue if likely the only asset available to repay the loans at

issue. See Preliminary Injunction entered on July 20,2015. The Court ordered that the

parties confer on the appointment ol' a receiver for the purpose of liquidating artwork to

satisfy the loan obligations at issue and report back to the Court at the hcaring set fbr

September 26,2016. Id.

Crystal has reached out to more than one receiver candidate that is nationally regarded

in fine art to determine if they are willing to serve, but has received indication that they are

not interested under the circumstances. Crystal rvill continue to explore receiver options, but

in the event he has not located a receiver lvilling to serve, Crystal wants the issue to be ripe

for decision at the hearing on September26,2O16.

II. LAW AND ARGUMENT

A receiver is an officer or representative ofthe court, appointed to take the charge and

management of property which is the subject of litigation before it, f'or the purpose of its

preservation and ultimate disposition according to the final judgment therein. State v. Second

Iudicial Dist,-.Court in & for WasJroe Cty., 49 Nev. 145,241 P.317,317 (1925). NRS

32.010(1) provides that a receiver may be appointed by the court in an action by a creditor to

subject any property or fund to the creditor's claim, tvhere it is shown that the property or

fund is in danger of being lost, removed or materially injured. Alternatively, pursuant to NRS

32.010(6), a receiver may be appoinled in all other cases where receivers previously have

been appointed by "the usages of courts of equity."
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Ilere, the evidence presenled to the Court demonstrates that Crystal is a creditor with a

security interes{ in property under the control of the named defendants, whom the Court has

found are likely the alter ego of each other, The Court has found that the evidence suggests

the artwork at issue is the only source of payment for the arnounts owed to Crystal, and

expressed concem about the marurer in which Bush may be disposing of collateral. Courts of

equity have previously appointed receivers in similar circumstances requiring preservation

and administration or property in situations of fraud, imminent insolvency and waste or loss

of property. Se.ç 65 AmJur.2d (201i) Receivers $$ 29-33.

Here, given the Court's Preliminary Injunction restraining both parties from disposing

of the arrwork at issue, it is appropriate for a disinterested third party to marshal and liquidate

the assets at issue for the purpose of satisfying defendants' obligations to Crystal. The Court

indicated at the hearing on July 12 That it may be appropriate for a receiver to be appointed for

this purpose. The purpose of this motion is to put the issue lbrmally before the Court prior to

the hearing on September 26,7016. In the meanwhile, Crystal intends to continue exploring

possible receìver options and will confer with defendants if a suitable candidate expresses

interest in serving as a receiver.

NRS Chapter 32 does not require a bond for the appointment of a receiver. The

Nevada Supreme Court has stated that "it is the general rule that the requirement of such a

bond lies within the discretion of the trial cour1. Bowler v. Leonard. T0 Nev. 370,269P.zd

833 (1954). Given that the asserted value of the artwork at issue is very substantial, it may be

appropriate to require a bond of some substantial amount. However, Crystal suggests that the

bond amount be discussed at the hearing.

III. CONCLUSION

The appointment of a receiver is appropriate to collect, preserve and ultimately

liquidate the artwork at issue in this case to satisfy the outstanding obligations owed to Crystal

by defendants. Crystal requests that the Court enter its order that a receiver be appointed and

setting forth a mechanism for doing so.
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Affirmation pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED: September 9,2016. WOODBURN AND WEDCE

By /s/Dane W. Anderson
W. Cluis Wicker, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883
Attomeys for Steven B. Crystal,
Aulomated Cash Systems and Aulomated
Cashless Systems

4-

APPXOOOO29



I

2

l

{

6

7

8

0

t0

¡t

IJ

i4

I5

T6

la

t8

t9

20

2l

23

24

25

76

27

?8
lva'x)tlut i¡{¡i Álil) \\'Ê¡xifi
òlø ¡i!¡ì Rô3,J, Suilc 5gì
,tü. ¡¡V årJ I I
1c,' (Ì?!) {A$'j1{4 -5-

APPXOOO03O

CERTIFIC,{'I' E OF S[,"R VI C fI

Pursuanl to NI{CP 5(b), t ceÍify that I am an employee of lhe larv ofïìces of

Woodbum, and lryedge. 6100 ìileil Road, Suite 500, Reno, Nevada 89511, and that I

caused to be served the f'oregoing docurnent(s) described as follows:

the party(s) set forJh below try;

?lacing an original or true copy thereof in a seoled envelope placed for collection
and mailing in the United States Mai1, at Renoo Nevada, postage prepaid, ltrllowing
ordinary business prâcti ceri.

X Personal delivcry.

Facsimile (f.AX).

Fedêral lxpress or othe¡ ovelr:tight delivery"

X Elect¡onically fìled the furegoing with the Clerk of the Cour by uslng the
ECF system whìch lvill sencl a notice of electronic :filing to fhe following;

Alicia Johnssn
JOFTNSON LAT/ FR,A,CTICE
6I tr SierraRsse llr., Suite A
Reno, NY 89511
Via Fersenal DelÍv*ry & S-Flex

Stevc lv{, Defilippis
P{CONE & DEFTI-]PPIS, A l¡.L.C"
625 N. First Skeet
San Jose, ÕA 95112
Via E.Flex & U.S, Mail

,t4
DATED this 7 ' day ot'Septembcr. 2016.

/sl l)ianne þl- Kellinc
An employee of Woodbuur and V/edg*
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WOODBURNAND WEDCE
6l00Ncil Roâd, Suite 500
Reno, NevÂdå 8951 I

Trl: (??5) 608-3000

2645
W. Ctnis Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951 I
Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwi cker@woodburnandwedge. com
danderson@woodburnandwedge. com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Steven Crystal

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTzuCT COURT OF THE STATE OF NBVADA

IN AND FOR THE COI"INTY OF WASHOE

Case No.: CVlT-00281

Dept. No.: 6

Plaintiff,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC andlor DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES ll-20,

Defendants.

OPPOSITION TO DBFENDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH_ËD.RYICE AND DISMISS

CASE

Plaintiff Steven B, Crystal, individually and as Trustee of the Barbara L. Crystal

Decedent Trust ("Crystal"), by and through undersigned counsel, hereby opposes Defendant's

Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case as follows. This Opposition is based upon Nevada

Rules of Civil Procedure ("NRCP") 4, the tbllowing memorandunr of points and authorities,

the Declaration of Chris Wicker, the Declaration of Dianne Kelling, the Declaration of Dane

Anderson, the Declaration of Stephen Warner, the Decla¡ation of Steve Crystal, attached

exhibits, and any oral argument this Courl may entertain.

-1-
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Mcmoraudum of Poi.nfs and Authorities

I. I4Hpduction

This Court should deny Defendant's Motion to Quash Service and Disrniss Case. This

Court does have personal jurisdiction over the Defendant as he was personally served by a

non paÍy while physically present in the State of Nevada. Minimum contacts âre not required

to be shown to justify personal jurisdiction when service is by personal service upon

Defendant while physically present in the forum state. Defendant was properly served in

accorclance with NRCP 4, as he was served by a person who is not a party and who is over l8

years of age. The Declaration of Personal Service was not perjured, the Declaration of James

McGowen contains the perjury.

Further, Defendant was not tricked into coming to Nevada by Plaintiff, nor was any

manner of deceit used by Plaintiff to lure Defendant to Nevada with the intention to obtain

personal jurisdiction. Plaintiff was surprised to discover Defendant in Reno. Therefore,

Defendant's motion should be denied.

II. Factual Backeto,gnd

Plaintiff reasserts the facts as alleged in the Complaint. On February 9,7017, Plaintiff

and his counsel appeared at a scheduled deposition in the matter of Crystal v. Bush and related

claims, Second Judicial District Court Case No. CV16-00865, Department 4. The deposition

took place at Sunshine Litigation Services in Reno, Nevada. Upon anival, Plaintiff s attomey

Chris Wicker, as well as Plaintiff, Mr. Crystal, were surprised to see that the Defendant Jim

McGowen was present. Mr. Wicker did not know, nor did he have any reason to suspect that

Defendant would be in attendance. Wicker Decl. tf 3, Crystal Decl. ll 3. There was no

trickery or deceit on behalf of Plaintiffor a sinister motive as alleged by Defendant. Mof.4:7-

19. Indeed, there was no reason for Defendant to be in attendance and Mr. Wicker and Mr,

Crystal were surprised to see him that day. Plaintiff was rìot involved in any collusion with

-2-
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any other party, and was not a paft of, or aware of, any request to get Defendant to Nevada.

Crystal Decl. fl 4. V/icker did not object to Defendant's presence during the deposition. Mr.

Wicker did, however, believe it was an opportunity to obtain personal jurisdiction over

Defendant and serve him in the present matter. Wicker Decl. $ 4.

When Mr. V/icker found out that Mr. McGowen was presertt, he called Mr. Anderson

and requested him to prepare a complaint for claims that Mr. Crystal had against Mr.

McGowen as Trustee for an undisclosed trust. V/icker Dec. !f 4, DA Decl. tf 2,3' The

Summons and Complaint v/ere drafted by Plaintiff s counsel, Dane Anderson, and brought to

the location where the deposition was being held. Mr. Anderson directed his assistant, Diarue

Kelling, to file the Complaint and get a summons issued' DA Decl. tf 4, 5' Ms. Kelling

brought the issued Summons and a copy of the Complaint to Sunshine Litigation Services

where the deposition was being conducted. Kelling Decl.'lf 2,3. The text messages between

Mr. Anderson and Ms, Kelling asking Ms. Kelling to come to Sunshine Litigation Services

are attached as Exhibit I to Ms. Kelling's Declaration. Also attached as Exhibit 2 to lhe

Kelling Declaration is a copy of a photograph of Ms. Kelling holding the Summons and

Complaint in the conference room 5 at Sunshine Litigation Services, Kelling Decl, '!f 6,

Anderson Decl. { L Defendant McGowen stepped out of the deposition room and was met by

Mr, Wicker and Ms. Kelling, Defendant was served by Dianne Kelling and not, as he alleged,

by Mr. Wicker. Wicker Decl. {l 8, 9, 10, Kelling Decl, 'lf 7, 8. The text message from Ms.

Kelling to Mr, Anderson indicates "service was accomplished." Kelling Decl. '!J9, Exhibit 1.

The Dsclaration of Personal Service as filed by Plaintiff is true and accurate and not

perjured as further alleged by Defendant. Mr. McGowen's claim that he was hand served by

Mr. Wicker and that he was cefiain lto woman served him is the false statement. Thus,

personaljurisdiction was obtained by Defendant's presence in the forum state and personal

service was effectuated through service by a disinterested person.

Defendant McGowen declares he was tricked into corning to Nevada through

collusion between Mr, Bush and Plaintiff. MoI.4:7-13, The allegation is nonsense, not

supported by any evidence, and as described below, Mr. McGowen has had dealings with Mr.

-J-

APPXOOOO33



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

I

9

10

lt

t2

13

14

l5

ló

t7

18

19

20

2l

22

¿3

24

25

26

z',t

28
WOODI}URN ÀNÐ VEDGE
ó100 Neil RoÀd, Suite 5Ò0

Rrno, Nevadã 89Sl I

Icl: (775) 688-3000

Bush to lhe detriment of Mr. Crystal. Neither Mr. Crystal nor his counsel had anything to do

with Mr, McGowen coming to Reno. Crystal Decl. ll 2,3,4, Wicker Decl, Jf 3, Defendant

claims to have been tolcl by Mr. Bush's âttomey, Steve Defìlippis, that he was coming for a

settlement conference fhat peripherally involved his clients. Mot. 3:10-14. Also, on February

6,2017, Mr. Bush emailed Mr. Warner's attorney, Carole Pope, that he was busy on a

settlement conference and was coordinating the attendance of attomeys from, among other

places, Texas (Mr. McGowen), I{ealdsburg (Mr, Teneri), and San Jose (Mr. Defilippis).

'Wamer Decl. { 4, 5,6, Exhibit 1 to Wamer Decl. This is consistent with Mr. McGowen's

statement that Mr. Bush and Mr, Defîlippis contacted Mr, McGowen's client and requested

that they come to Reno for a settlement confetence. Mc. Gowen Decl.,'1f 6. They also

allegedly encouraged Mc. Gowen to attend the deposition of Elina Leung the morning of

February 9, 2017 . Id., n 8.

Although Plaintiff does not know what was said to Mr. McGowen, this may be related

to a settlement conference that was scheduled for the aftemoon of February 9,2017 inlhe

case of C/P South l/irginia v. Ronald.Baslz, Second Judicial District Court Case No. CVl6-

00948 in Department l. There also was pending litigation between Crystal and Bush and other

parties in Crystal, et al. v, Bush, et a/,, Second Judicial District Court Case No. CV16-00865

in Deparlment 4. .Í-rdge Berry ordered a settlement conference in the CIP case before Judge

Russell in Carson City to take place on the aftemoon of February 9,2017. Wicker Decl. { 12.

Three depositions were scheduled for February 8,2017. One of the depositions moved from

February B and rescheduled for the morning of February 9 in the Crystal v. Bttsh matter.

Wicker Decl. lJ 12. Mr. Defilippis, from San Jose, had to attend the settlement conference

that afternoon.

On February 6,201'7, Mr. Bush filed a motion to consolidate the two actions for

purposes of the settlement conference. A copy is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 to the Wicker

Declaration. On February 8,2017, CIP, which is a family company of Mr. Crystal, opposed

tlre nrotion, which opposition was filed at 3:42 p.m. A copy of the Opposition is attached

hereto as Exhibit 2 to fhe Wicker Declaration. CIP opposed it as the two matters had different

-4-
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issues, different parties and the Crystal v, Bush matter was much more complicatecl. If the

matters had been consolidated for settlement, Mr. McGowen's clients might have had an

interest since they allegedly claim an interest in a company involved inthe Crystal v. Bush

case. However, McGowen's clients are not parties, have never formally brought forward any

claims, and have just said they believe they have claims. Wicker Decl. tf 17. On February 8,

at 4:58 p.m., the Court denied the motion to consolidate. See Exhibit 3 to the Wicker

Declaration, attached.

Since neither Crystal nor his counsel had any involvement or contact with Mr.

McGowen, it is unknown what was said to him. Mr. McGowen may not have been told the

Court denied the motion to consolidate the cases for settlement purposes at the end of the day

on February 8,2017. Mr, Terreri, who Mr, McGowen refers to, apparently was also present

for a proposed settlelnent conference in Crystal v. Bush that was not happening. It was only

decided on February 8,2017 to move a scheduled deposition to February 9,2t17. V/icker

Decl.'!f I L Certainly, there was no collusion involving Crystal and Bush to bring Mr.

McGowen to Nevada. Crystal and Bush are involved in bitter litigation which would preclude

collusion on anything, If Plaintiff actually thought Mr. McGowen might be coming to

Nevada, a complaint would have been prepared in advance. Wicker Decl. tf 16.

In. Lesal Arqument

A. Personal Jurisdiction

It is well-settled that personal jurisdiction may be asserted over an individual who is

served with process while present within the forum state. ,S¿e Pennoyer v. Neff 95 U.S. [5

Ottol,714,24L.Ed.565 (1878);NRCP 4(fl. Defendant's motion contains anearly four-page

"minimum contacts" analysis, citing numerous cases but overlooking the critical authority of

C ariaga v. Eíghth Judicial Dist. Court o/Sfate, 1 04 Nev. 544, 546, 7 62 P.2d. 886, 887-BB

(1988). In that case, the Nevada Supreme Court addressed the issue of whether Nevada courts

must conduct a "minimum contacts" analysis when a Defendant is served with process while

-5
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physically present in Nevada. The Cariaga Court answered that questiotl in the ttegative,

holding that "personal jurisdiction may be exercisecl over a ron-resident Defendant if the

Defendant is ssrved with process while he is physically present in the forum state." 1d. In so

holding, the court stated: "The doctrine of 'minimum contacts'...was never intended to limit

tlre jurisdiction of state courts over persons found within the borders of the forum state." Id,

There is no dispute that Defendant was personally served with the Summons and Complaínt

while physically present in Reno, Nevada.

Thus, pursuant to the fînclings in Cariaga, the minimum contacts between the

Defendant and the forum state as discussed in Trump v. Eighth Jud, Dist. Ct.,109 Nev. 687,

698,857 ?.2d74A,747 Q.tev. 1993), do not apply. Defendant was in Nevada, the forum state,

and was personally served with process, thus personal jurisdiction has been established.

B. Service of Process Was Not Accomplished by Deceit or Trickery.

Plaintiff was not involved in, nor a party to, any trickery or deceit in order to lure

Defendant to the forum state. As previously discussed, it was a suprise to Plaintiff to see Mr.

McGowen present at the scheduled deposition on February 9,2017. At no time prior to

arriving at the deposition did Plaintiff have any idea Defendant would be in attendance.

Defendant has not alleged he was lured to Nevada by Mr. Crystal, and if he did, that would

not be true; thus, service was properly effectuated. Plaintiffplayed no role in ensuring

Defendant would be present in Reno, Nevada, and in fact had no notice he would be present

until counsel arrive at Sunshine Litigation Services on the moming of the deposition.

Defendant has offered no evidence to substantiate his inflammatory allegations that Plaintiff

was involved in some curming plot to lure Defendant to Nevada with the sole purpose of

serving him. Plaintiff did not object to McGowen being present in the deposition, but in no

way tricked or induced him to remain long enough in order to be served. Defendant is an adult

and could have exersised his free will to ieave at any time he so desired. Plaintiff should not

be prejudiced by granting Defendant's motion to quash simply because Defendant was found

in Reno.
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it is more than a little ironic that Mr. McGowen complains of Bush and his counsel

inviting him to a settlement conference. There is plenty of reason to believe that Bush has a

much closer relationship to Mr. McGowen than he admits. In June, 2014 Crystal wired $2.1

million to Mr. McGowen's trust ascount, because Mr. McGowen's client, controlled by Mr.

Wellborn Sr., was selling the Bronze Pieta to Mr. Bush or his alter ego company, Crystal

Decl. tf 6, Just a few months later, Bush and McGowen entered into the transaction whereby

McGowen as Trustee bought the Pieta back plus two purported Jackson Pollock paintings for

only $500,000. Crystal Decl. tf 6, ,S¿a Exhibit 4 attached to Wicker Decl. One might think

thaf when Mr. McGowen received $2.1 million for the Pieta four months before Bush came to

him to sell the Pieta plus two potential Jackson Pollocks for $500,000, it should raise some

questions. Mr. McGowen even conspired with Mr. Bush to hide the facts of the sale. See

Exhibit 5 to V/icker Declaration. McGowen has never revealed who he claims to be Trustee

for, but Bush testified that after the sale Mr. V/ellborn Sr. was able to present the paintings so

Bush could take a sample for testing purposes. Deposition of Bush, excerpts attached as

Exhibit 6 to V/icker Decl. If any collusion has occurred it would likely be between McGowen

and Bush, and not between Crystal and Bush. As stated in the opposition to consolidate for

settlement purposes, Crystal never had any intention of negotiating the case that potentially

included Mr. McGowen's clients.

The cases cited by Defendant haye no application to these circumstances. In all of the

cases, unlike here, the Plaintiff was involved in procuring the Defendant's presence in the

forum state. The case of Coyne v. Grupo Inds. Triem, S.A. de C.V,,105 F.R.D. 627 Q-D'C.

1985) cited by Defendant, does not affect the proper service on Defendant. Plaintiff had no

role whatsoever in the presence of Mr. McGowen in Reno. Crystal did nothing and said

nothing to attempt to keep Mr, McGowen present, \Micker Decl. tf 3. At any time Mr'

McGowen could have asked Mr. Crystal or his counsel if they wanted him to stay to try to

negotiate. Mr. McGowen said nothing. Wicker Decl. { 8'

Defendant also relies on Lamb v, Schrnitt,285 U.S. 222 (1932) to claim Defendant

was imrnune from service because he came to Reno in ær unrelated matter, MoL6:20-21.

7
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Defendant stretches the holding in Lamb beyond lecognition. Mr. McGowen did not

represent any party inthe Bush v. Crystal litigation. Even if he did, he did not come to a

hearing or trial as in Lamb, he came to a deposition that he admits had nothing to clo with him,

his clients, or the artwork. McGowen Decl. tf 10. Mr, McGowen had zero immunity from

service.

Defendant claims he was tricked into remaining at Sunshine Litigation Services until

after a lunch break, but provides no evidence to substantiate this absurd claim. Mot. 6:21-25.

C. Summons and Complaint Were Served by a Non-Party and Thus Service Was
Proper.

NRCP 4(c) requires "[p]rocess shall be served by the sheriff of the county where the

Defendant is found, or by a deputy, or by any person who is not-A-party and who is over I B

years of age,.,.'NRCP 4(c) (emphasis added).

The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP) Rule a(cX2XA) provides that "[a]

summons and complaint shall, .,., be served by any person who is not a party and is not less

than 18 years of age." The wording is almost identically in that service may be made by

anyone who is not a party, (Emphasis added).

The Federal Rules were amended in 1983 to reduce the role of federal marshals in the

service of process in most civil actions." Madden v Cleland, !Q5 F .R.D. 520^ 522

fN.D.Ga.1985). As arnended, Rule 4 no longer includes restrictive language with respect to

the classes of persons who are permitted to serve process. A summons and complaint now

may be served by "any person who is not a parfy and is not less than I I years of age." The

Court in Madden v. Cleland declined to read limitations onto the clear wording of

Fed.R.Civ.P, a(cX2l(,A), and found that a party's attorney may serve a summons and

cornplaint in accordance with the Federal Rules, stating, "The phrase "any person who is not a

party" in Fed.R.Civ,P. 4(oX.2XA) does not prohibit service by a party's representative."

Many other Federal Courts have found that "any person who is not a pal"ty" does not

preclude service of process by an attorney or an employee of an attomey, as they are not a

party to the case. See, Truslee-s-.oJfLocal Union No. 727 Pension Fund v. Pe\fect Parking. Inc.

-8-
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126 F.R.D.48 USDC, N.D. Illinois, Eastern Division. March 3l, 1989. Based upon the plain

language of Rule 4, service of summons and complaint by an attorney for the Plaintiff has

been held to be proper service, See C,F.T.C, v. Amerícan Metal Exchange Corp., 693 F.Supp'

168. l86 .N.J.1988);Jugolínijav, Blue Heaven Mtl/s, 115 F.R.D. 13. 15 (S.D. G*a.1986).

Fu¡thermorc, Courts have found that service by an employee of an attorney is proper

within the meaning of FRCP a(c)(2)(A). Commodit.v Futufes Trading Com'nv. Americatt

Metals Exchange Corp.693 F.Supp, l68 USDC, D. New Jersey. July 18, 1988. In that case,

Defendants were served by a senior fìnaneial investigator of the Office of Comptroller for the

State of Florida. The pleadings in that case reveal that the Office of Comptroller represented

the State of Florida, Thus, since that office was counsel for a par1y, State of Florida, the Court

found that these Defendants were not serued by a party , but rather were served by an

employee of its counsel. The Court found such was proper.

Defendant cites Nevada Cornell Silver Mines v. Hankins, 5 I Nev. 410,279 P .27 ,30

(t929) and Sawyer v. Sugarless Shops, lnc.,106 Nev.265, 269-70,792P.2d14,17 (1990) and

argues that the rules prohibit the individual party, as well as an agent of the party, including

his attorney, from effectuating service. This is sirnply an inaccurate reading and

understanding of the law. While the case does hold that "something as fundamental and

decisive as service is best taken away from the parties or their counsel or counsel's

employees," (empliasis added), it does not explicitly prohibit service by an attomey or

employee. In any event, the rule just prohibits a party from serving process as recognized by

the federal courts.

By Defendant's reasoning, it would be impossible to find a "wholly disinterested

party" to effectuate service of process. One must consider an independent process setver

being retained by corursel to serve process. This person, while not ernployed by the attorney

or the law firm, has been retained for the specifrc purpose of serving process, Their actions

are motivated by the desire to fulfill the wishes of counsel, and are paid for doing a job.

-9-
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Essentially they are being paid 10 ensure the instructions of the attomey are met, i.e. that the

party is served, They have as much, or as little, interest in the substance of the case as any

other employee of the attorney.

Thus, while service by counsel for Plaintiff may not be the most preferable method,

service by counsel is proper, as is service by an employee ofcounsel. Defendant does not

deny the fact he was served with a Summons and Complaint, he simply objects to the person

by whom he was served. As established by case law and the plain reading of the statute,

service by anyone who is not a parly and over I I years ofage, is proper service. Thus,

Defendant was properly served in accordance to NRCP 4(c). This Court should follow the

recent federal court cases interpreting an identical rule so Defendant's motion to quash service

should be denied.

Defendant was served by Dianne M. Kelling. Even if, as Defendant alleged, he was

served by Mr. Wicker, service still would have been proper under FRCP a(c)(2)(a). Neither

Ms. Kelling nor Mr. Wicker is a party to the case, both are over l8 years old, thus either

would qualify as a proper person to effectuate service under FRCP and NRCP 4.

W. Conclusion

Plaintiff obtained personal jurisdiction over Defendant when Defendant was

physically present in the f'orum slate. No minimum contacts are required to justify personal

jurisdiction when Defendant is physically present in the forum state. Personal service was

effectuated when Defendant was handed the Sumrnons and Complaint by Dianne M. Kelling,

an employee of V/oodbrun and Wedge. Kelling is not a party to the case and is over 18 years

old, thus a suitable person to serve process. The Declaration of Personal Service was not

perjured.

Mr. Bush and his counsel may have had a belief that the Court in Depatlment I would

not deny their rnotion to consolidate for settlement purposes. Plaintiff played no role in, nor

has any knowledge of, a sinister plot to lure Defendant to the forum state. Plaintiff was

surprised to see Defeltdant at the deposition on February 9,2017. There was no collusion by

.10-
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Plaintiff with any party, or any deceit on the part of Plaintiff. Indeed, Plaintiff had no

knowledge that Dcfendant would be present until he arrived at the deposition location. For all

the reasons set forth above, Defendant's Motion to Quash Service and Disrniss case should be

denied.

Affirmation pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED: March 28,2017.

By:
w. Wicker, Esq
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq,
Nevada Bar No. 6883

Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal
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CERTIF'ICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Woodburn and Wedge and that on fhis date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through the Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the OPPOSITION TO DDFENDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE AND

DISMISS CASß to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq.
Canie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
Attorneys þr Defendant

Dated: March 28,2017

An employee of Woodburn and Wedge
By:

-12-
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FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-03-28 06:43:34 PM

1520
V/. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951 I
Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwicker@woodburnandwedge. com
danderson@woodburnandwedge. com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Steven Crystal

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 6021939: pm

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATB OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR TFIE COLTNTY OF WASHOE

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

Plaintiff,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES ll-20,

Case No.: CV17-00281

Dept. No.: 6

DECLARATION OF STAPHEN
WARNER IN SIJPPORT OF

OPPOSITION TO ÐEFENDANT'S
MOTION TO QUASH SERVTCE AND

DISMISS CASE ANI)
RppuEsT FoR sANcTroNs

WÔÔDÐI,'RN AND TVEDGD
ó100 Ncil Ro¡d, SuitÈ 500

neno, Ncvadâ 8951 I

Tel: (775) ó88-1000

Defendants

L I am the Chief Operating Officer of Automated Cashless Systems, Inc., which

is a party in the pending lawsuit of Crystal, et al. v. Bush, et a/,, Second Judicial District Case

No. CV16-00865, Dept. No,4.

2. In addition, my wife and I fìled an action against Ron G. Bush based on

personal loans my lvife and I made to Mr. Bush. I was represented by Carole Pope in that

matter, Ilarner v. Bush, Case No. CVl6-01913, Dept. No. 10.

3. In that action, Mr. Bush had not answered and my attorney contacted him

abouf our intent to default him.

-l-
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4. Attached hereto is an email exchange between Ms. Pope and Mr. Bush' My

attorney sent this email to me in the ordinary course of business.

5. Notably, in his emails dated February 6,2017, Mr. Bush asked us not to

default him because he had a settlement conference scheduled that week. Mr. Bush said he

was coordinating the settlement conference by bringing o'...attorneys in from Texas, Arizona,

Vegas, Healdsberg [sicJ, and San Jose for those proceedings." P. 3.

6. Mr, McGowen is from Texas, Mr. Terreri is from Healdsburg and Mr.

Defilippis is from San Jose. All three were present durirrg the deposition on the morning of

February 9,2017.

I swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this4Z day of March, 20

tvÞ-
STEPHEN WARNER

n
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Affirmafion pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

DATED: March 28,2017.

By

WEDGB

w. Wicker, Esq
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Andersonn Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883

Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal

APPXOOOO45



I

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

l0

11

12

l3

l4

l5

16

t7

l8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
WOODEURN AND WEÍ}CE

6 I (O ì{rit R6d, Sülþ 500
Rcno, ¡N E95 I I

Td: (¡?9) 6tE-30C{

Ethibit No.

1

Table of Exhibits
Descliqtjon

Email exchange between
Carole Pope and Ron Bush

No. ofPages

4

APPXOO0046



I

z

J

4

6

7

8

9

l0

1l

t2

l3

t4

t5

16

17

18

r9

20

2t

22

L)

24

25

26

,1

28
WÛODBURN ÀND WEDGE

6100Ncil Rqrd, Sùhc500
Rcnq }¡v ¡1951 I

Tcl: (775)6E8-3000

APPXOOOO4T

c. I,RTIFI.Q| rE o F ËERVICIà

I hereby certify that I am an employee ofTVoodbum and TVedge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through the Court's E-flex system a true and conect

copy of rhe DECLARATION OF STEPHEN \ryARNER IN SUPPORT Or'

OPPOSITION TO DEFßNDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVICE AND DISMISS

CASE to:

Jacey Prupas, Esq.
Carrie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER, L,L.P.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
Attorneys þr Defendant

Dated: March 28,2017

of Woodbum V/edge
By:

An
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---Original Message----
From: Steve Warner <swarner@açsplavon.com>
To:'Carole Pope' <cmq7000@aol.com>
Cc:'Kathryn Warner' <kathrynlake5BB@qmail.com>
Sent: Tue, Feb7,2017 10:37 am
Subject: RE: Warner v. Bush lawsuit

Hello Carole,

Please file the today... His letter has no credence as far as my wife and I are conc,erned. Our lawsuit filing (You, Kate
and I) against Mr. Bush has absolutely nothing to do with the proceedings between he and Mr. Crystal. His
representations in his response letter to you are idle threats with no meri[ and Kate are tired of the BS/delays he continues

to represent. You too indicate that in the body of your email... "l know this rnan is not forthcoming. -Hg did wait until the

last minute to respond to my letter." He's not even represented by an attomey for his responses. Therefore, please

execute default.

BTW thc court meeting he is representing has to do with real-çstate he and Crystal are in litigation over

Thank you,

Stephen L Warner
Founder/Chief Operating Offi cer
Automated Cashlcss Systems, Inc

t,
\
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swarner@acsplayon,çom
175-412-5450

Ì4/w\,1l. ac:plavo n, co m

Play 0n Responsibly

From: Carole Pope [mailto:cmp7000@aol.com]
Senb Monday, February 06,2077 5:47 PM

To; swarner(ôacsplayon,com
Subject: Fwd: Warner v. Bush lawsuít

Good Evening Steve,

Please see the emails belou I look forward to hearing your thoughts. I am poised to fíle the default tomorrow, or we can
wait one week, I know th¡s man is not forthcoming, He did wait untíl the last minute to respond to my letter. ls there any
chance of resolution in the other matter?

Sincerely,
Carole
Law Office of Carole M. Pope, APC
301 Flint Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

775-337-0773
775-337-0778 (fax)

*--Original Message-*-
From: Rgbush6 .BgþgghQ@e.e!.ç.Q.!q>

To: cmp7000 <9mp2000@selso!û>
Senl Mon, Feb 6, 2017 5:37 pm
Subject: Re: Warner v. Bush lawsuit
Dear Ms. Pope:

Your representations in your email are very unfortunate. As I have repeatedly stated, I intend to pay Steve
(who I will refer to as Steve W. due to several Steve's involved).

Unfortunately, Steve TV's partner Steve Crystal managed to "trick" the court into tying up my assets and I have
no way earn an income or sell anything to pay my bills or debts.

HOV/EVER, without going into confidential details, I can tell you that things will charge after this week.

I just don't have time to file that Answer, and I am NOT denying the debt. I am working l6 hours a day (along

with 3 attorneys putting in a crazy amount of hours) preparing what will be very unpleasant legal proceedings in
multiple states for everyone involved in the fraud allegations in that litigation if Mr. Crystal doesn't accept

payment of the debt, return tfie stolen assets, and agree to let the Court release the hold on my other assets.

Getting a default judgment filed against me is unnecessary at this time and will accompiish nothing except force

me to raise other defenses which will be very rurfortunate,

I truly like Steve Warner, and have no desire to canse very costly litigation costs on his part if the multiple
people being represented in the settlement hearings this week are forced to drag him into what will be very

APPXOOOOSO



serious litigation matters filed by the law finn of Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber et al, who will be representing

several interested parties in coult this week.

This can be avoided. AGAIN I say, I admit the debt and I intend to pay it. I have instructed my attomevs to

pay m)¡ debt to Mr, and Mrs. llamer directly out of the settlement that will be Eesented this wg.qk. A default
judgment accomplishes nothing further than that because I don't have any available assets until that settlement

is executed.

If on the other hand, Mr. Crystal doesn't agree to accept the debt owed to him and "do the right thing," then

everyone on that side, including unfortunately Mr. Warner, will be dragged into defending against very, very

unpleasant litigation.

Carole, I ask that you wait until the outcome of this week's Court meeting with the multiple attorneys

coming from multiple states to represent my interests and the interests of several other people who have been

"wronged.tt

I promise I will be in touch with you by the end of the day a week from today, and hopefully in that call I can

give you a date when the entire debt to Mr. and Mrs. 
'Warner will be paid. The money has been available for

distribution by my attomeys for several months. But it cannot be distributed until the case with Mr. Crystal is

settled.

Sincerely,

Ron Bush

In a message dafedZl6ll0l7 4:54:31P.M. Pacific Standard Time, crI-rBZOQO@qqLçSnl writes:
Dear Mr. Bush,

My paralegal, Denise Hines, forwarded me the email below. Please be advised that your answer was due today as

oútlineO in my letter dated January 26,2017 since you did not accept the settlement offer. Further, as I indicated, if an

answer is not filed, I will be filing your default tomorrow.

Sincerely,
Carole
Law Office of Carole M. Pope, APC
301 Flint Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

77õ-337-0773
775-337-0778 (fax)

Fonuarded message
From: <BgÞUS@AoLçq!0>
Date: Mon, Feb 6, 2017 at 12:05 PM
Subjecl Re: Warner v. Bush lawsuit
To: nvskilady.(Ogmaìl.com

Denise,

I'm sorry I have just been overwhelmed preparing for a settlement conference and legal proceedings that are

taking place Wednesday and Thursday this week. I am having to coordinate attomeys coming in from Texas,

Arizona, Vegas, Healdsberg, and San Jose for those proceedings.

2
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I will respond to your email later today or tomorrow morning

Sincerely,

Ron

In a message dated 112612017 3:05:07 P.M. Pacific Standard Time, nvskilady@gmail.com writes:
Ðear Mr. Bush,

I work for Carole Pope as her paralegal. Attached is a letter from the Warners relating to their offer regarding the above
lawsuit. Please note that the offer is only open for 10 days from the date of this letter.

lf you have any questions please let us know.

Sincerely

Denise Hines, ACP
Advanced Certified Paralegal
nvskilady@qmail.com

Sincerely,

Denise Hines, ACP
Advanced Certilied Paralegal

Stephen L Warner
Founder/Chisf Operating Officer
Automated Cashless Systems, lnc
swarner@acsplayon.com
775-412-5450

www,acsplavon.com

Play On Responsibly
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FILED
Electronically
cv17-00281

2017-03-28 06:43:34 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 60219391520
V/. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037

Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGE
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 89511
Telephone: 775-688-3000
Facsimile: 775-688-3088
cwicker@woodbumandwed ge. com
d and ers õn(@wo odbuma n dwõd ge. c orn

Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal

STEVEN B. CRYSTAL, individually and as

Trustee of The Barbara L. Crystal Decedent
Trust,

JIM MCGOWEN, Trustee of McGowen &
Fowler, PLLC and/or DOES 1-10, inclusive;
and DOES 1I-20,

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COI.INTY OF WASHOE

Case No.: CV17-00281

Dept, No.: 6

\YOODBURN A]..ID \{EDOE
6100 Ncil Ro¡d, Sù¡te 500

Reno, Ncv¡d¡ 8t5l I
Teli (775) 6E8-1000

Plaintiff,
DECLARATION OF W. CHRIS

WICKER IN SUPPORT OF
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S

MOTTON TO QUASH SERVICE AND
DISMISS AND

REOUEST FOR SANCTIQI.{S
Defendants

1. I am a shareholder in the law finn of Woodburn and V/edge which represents

the Plaintiff, Steven B. Crystal, in the within matter. This declaration is in support of

Plaintiff s Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Quash Service and Dismiss Case and

Request for Sanctions.

2. On the morning of February 9,201.7,I went to Sunshine Litigation Services in

Reno, Nevada to attend the scheduled deposition of Elina Leung, which was postponed from

the prior day, in the matter of Crystal v. Bush, Second Judicial District Court Case No. CV16-

00B65, Department 4. It was originally scheduled 1o take place on February 8, along with
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two other depositions, but the pafiies' counsel agreed to move this to the morning of February

9,2017.

3. I was surprised to fìnd Jim McGowen, as well as Bert Terreri, present at the

deposition, as Mr. McGowen was not representing any party in the matter for which the

deposition was being held, Counsel for Mr. Crystal had no involvement in Mr. McGowen's

presence on Febnrary 9,2017.

4. At a break, I called Dane Anderson, Esq., a shareholder of Woodbum and

Wedge, and asked him to prepare a complaint for claims that our client, Steve Crystal, has

against Mr. McGowen as Trustee for an undisclosed trust'

5. Steve Crystal offered to photograph Ms. Kelling performing the servicc of the

Sumrnons and Complaint upon Mr. McGowen, but I declined the offer as I did not want to

embarrass Mr. McGolven.

6. Just prior to l2:30 p.m. that afternoon, Dianne Kelling, Mr. Anderson's

assislant, brought the filed Complaint and issued Summons to Sunshine Litigation Services

into conference room 5. Ms. Kelling was there to serve Mr, McGowen with the documents.

7. Mr, Crystal photographed Ms. Kelling holding up the Summons and

Complaint prior to serving them upon Mr. McGowen. See Exhibit 2 to Kelling Declaration'

8. I escorted Ms. Kelling out of Room 5 and into the common area of Sunshine

Litigation Services, so that t could request that Mr. McGowen, who was in another

conference room at the time, come out to meet me. I had been talking to Mr. Terreri, who

wanted to speak with me. When we were done, I asked Mr. Terreri to ask Mr. McGowen to

come out of the conf'erence room where the deposition occured, Mr. McGowen said nothing

to me until he came out of the conference room where he was served.

g. When Mr. McGowen stepped out of the other conference room, I identified

him to Ms. Kelling, and Ms. Kelling handed him the Summons and complaint.

-¿-
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10. Mr. McGowen accepted the papers fron, Ms. Kelling, and then looked at r¡e

and asked, "What's this?" I told him it was a Summons and Complaint. I then went into a

conference room with Mr, McGowen to discuss the complairrt with him after he confìrrned he

was not represented by counsel,

I L Three depositions were scheduled for February 8,2017 inIhe Crystal v. Bush

matter. Counsel for Mr. Bush and Mr. Crystal agreed to reschedule the deposition of Elina

Leung to take place on the morning of February 9,2017 '

12. lnthe CIP Reøl Estate So. Virginìa v. Bush case, Judge Berry ordered the

parties to participate in a settlement conference with Judge Russell in Carson City on the

aftemoon of February 9,2017,

13, Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a Motion to Consolidate Actions for Purposes

of Settiement Conference Only filed by Mr. Bush in CIP Real Estate So. Virginia, et al. v.

RonaldG. Bush, ef a/., Second Judicial DistrictCaseNo. CV16-00948, in Departmenl l'

Attached as Exhibit 2 is CIP's opposition. Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is the order denying

the motion. All a¡e accurate copies of the papers that were filed.

14. Attached hereto as Exhibit 4 is a copy of a Bill of Sale, Right to Repurchase

Agreement dated November26,2014, which was produced to me by Mr. Bush's counsel in

response to a request for production. Attached hereto as Exhibit 5 is an email dated

November 28,2014 which was also produced to me by Mr. Bush's counsel. Both exhibits

are accurate copies of documents aclarowledged by Mr. Bush in his deposition.

15. Attached hereto as Exhibit 6 are ascurate copies of exceqpts from the

deposition of Ronnie Gene Bush (aka Ron or Ronald Bush) taken on June 29,2016 inthe

case of Crys tal, et al, v. Bz.tsh, er a/., Second Judicial District Court Case No. CV16-00865, in

Department 4.

-3-
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16. If we knew Mr. McGowen was coming to Reno, we would have prepared the

complaint in advance to serve immediately.

17. Mr. McGowen's clients allegedly claim an ownership interest in a corporate

entity which is a party inthe Crystal v. Bush matter. However, they are not parties, they have

never made a formal claim, and they are just allegations at this time, It does not appear those

clients have any involvement in the situation which led to Mr. Crystal's suit against lv{r.

McGowen as Trusfee for an undisclosed principal.

I swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the

foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this {dayof March, 20 I 7

tu
W. CHRIS WICKER

-4-
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Affìrmation pursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number ofany person.

DATED: March 28,2017.

By:
w. Wicker, Esq,
Nevada Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883

Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven Crystal
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çERTIF.'ICATE OF SERVrCE
I hereby certify that I am an employee of Woodburn and Wedge and that on this date,

I caused to be sent via electronic service through the Court's E-flex system a true and correct

copy of the DECLARATION OF W. CHRIS TVICKER IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION

TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO QUASH SERVTCE AND DTSMTSS CASE to

Jacey Prupas, Esq.
Canie L. Parker, Esq.
SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
50 West Liberty Streetn Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501
A t t o r neys fo r D efendant

Dated: March 28,20'17

By: f\u-s¡ççr ç3þ2St
An employee of and Wedge
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W. Chris Wicker, Esq.
Nevada State Bar No. 1037
Dane W. Anderson, Esq,
Nevada State Bar 6883
WOODBURN AND WEDGI]
6100 Neil Road, Suite 500
Reno, Nevada 8951I
Telephone: 7 7 5-688-3000
Facsirï¡i le: 775-688-3088
Enrai I : cwicker@woodburnandwecl ge. com
danderson@woodburnandr.vedge.conr

Attomeys llor Plaintifli

CIP RËAL ËSTATIE SO, VIRGINIA LLC, a
Nevacla limited liability compâny; CIP REAL
ESTATÊ L,I"C, a Nevada limited liability
company,

Transaction #5941877

IN TI.IE SECOND JUDICIAL DIS]RICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FORTHE COTJNTY OF WASHOI]

Case No,: CVl6-00948

Dept. No.: I

Plaintiff-s,

RONAI,D G, BUSH aka ]ìONNIE G. BUSH,
an individual; TYCHE ART
INTERNATI ONAL, lNC., a Nevada
corporation; and DOËS I - 5, ìnclusive,

l)efbndants.

PLAINTIFFS' OPI'OSITION TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO CONSOLIDATIi
1A.-ÇTLONJS rOR PURPOSDS OF SETTLEMENT CONFEIIENCE ONLY

Plaintitß. CIP REAL ESTATE SO. VIRGINIA LLC and CIP REAL ESTATE I-LC,

by aud tlirough their oounsel o1' record, WOODBURN AND WEDGIì, lrereby oppose

DefÞndants' Motíon ¿rs follows,

It is ludicrous fbr Del'endants to request an order consolidating the two actions tbr

purposes o1' settlelnent negotiations. llhere are many reâsons why Crystal has refused to

negotiate the Department 4 case with the CIP lease matters.

1-
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dl00 F\ril Rùad. Sûré 500
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The Departmelrt 4 cases are extretnely dilferent a¡rcl have been litìgatecl cornpletely

difl'er:e¡tly than this case. In the case beforc this Court, virtirally no discovery has been

perfolmed. CIP has ploduced 1,200 pages of infbrmation abot¡t the two buildings and their

expenses. Tlre only clisclosure from Defenclants is they served copies of ten cancelled checks

after the clisclosure deadline. No depositions have been taken.

In the Departnreut 4 case, in addition to the conr¡rlaint, counterclaims, crossclaínrs, atrd

third-parry claims, many thousands ofÌpages of docuurents have been produced by both sides.

There have been two pr:eliminary injunction hearings. Seven depositions have been taken.

Nulnerous motions have been filed and briefed, including discovery lnotions. The level of

complexity of the De¡rarturent 4 litigation is many times that o1'the relatively simple issues in

the case beflore this Court.

A rnajor issue in Departnreut 4 ís whether Mr, Ilush or any of his alter ego companies,

Tyche Art International (TAI), "fyche Acquisitions Group (TAG), Classic Fine Art (Classic)'

anti Iìenaissanoe Masters (Renaissar:ce), own an interest in Autotnatic Cash fiysterns (ACS) or

the entity that purchasecl its assets, Autonratic Cashlcss Syslems (ACLS). Mr. Bush, tlrrough

his alter-ego, Tyche Acquisitions Group (TAG), borrowed $5,150,000 fiorn Mr. Crystaland

by Barbara Crystal Decedent's Trust (collectively "Crystal") to buy 5l% of ACS issued stock

fbr $5,0 million fron lrebruary to Jurre,2013. ACS stock antl att ownecl by Bush were

collateral for the ACS stoclc loan pursuant to â seourìty agreemenî. In late 20i3, Mr.

Busll/]'AG borrowed back $2.5 million, which loan was ¡rersonally guaranteed by Crystal.

ln Jrrly, 2014, Bush a¡rd his alter ego cornpany, Renaissance, borrowe<J $2.1 miìlion to

buy a Michelangelo ar¡thorized bronze sculpture; in August,20 14, lro¡rowed $450,000 for an

interest in purported Jackson Pollock paintings; an<! l'rorn May to October,20l4, boruowed

$500,000 ftrr an intcrest in a project to cast and sell Michelangelo nriniatures ìn the Bay Area'

All 9f' the loans ale in delàult. Without Crystal's knowledge, Ilush seøetly sold the

Michelangelo and purportecl .lackson Pollocks to an attorney as tr-ustee in Dallas, Texas for

$500,000.
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ACS is a corrpany that was f'olnred to pro<JLrce a clevioe that woulcl allow garning

custonlers to r¡se a debit carcl at a gaming table or slot machins to clbtain credit to garnble. In

late summer of 2015, if rvas cletermined by ACS ganring counsel that anybody owrring one

share of ACS had to be licensecl.

Over time, as llush defaultecl, Crystal obtainecl a large shale of ACS stoclc and wâs

chairnran of the Board. Mike Sackrison was the CFO of ACS. I¡r October,20l5, Sackrison

discovered that llush was couvicted of a felony that involved a gaming cornpâny, and spent

1985 to 2005 in prisorr. Bush clid not disclose his uiminal record when he borrowed rnoney

liour Crystal and obtained stock in ACS. Crystal and ACS learnee{ froru their gaming counsel

that as long as l]ush was involvccl in ACS, ACS could never be licensed to do business in

Nevada.

Afler discovering Buslr's deception, Crystal and ACS negotiated with Bush, who was

agreeable to getting out of ACS, Those negotiations in November and Decetnber of 2016

resulted in an agreement. Bush/TAG el'ltered into an agreelnent datecl Decenrber 29,2015

whereby Bush agreed that he had until March 30,20l6 to tender all amounts he owed and if

he tiid, somebocly designated by Bush and wlro was licensatrle would be assigned 82,000.000

shares of ACS, Pursuant to the agreement, if Bush failed to tender the morley due, he lost the

opportunity to obtaìn the ACS stock, Br¡sh may have a right to offset his debts of over $8.0

¡nillion plus interest, expenses ancl lees, fronl the value of collateral, which included ACS

stock.

ACIS still needed all of its shareholders to bc licensed. Despite requests ma<ìe in early

2016, rninority shareholclers. allied with Bush, refìrsed to send in the requirecl garning

a¡rplications, As a result, ACS was <Jead bccause it could rlot get licensed lvithoL¡t the

cooperation of minority shareholders. ACS hacl its assets valued and the ACS offìcers and

shareholders, ìncluding Crystal, ivho wanted to pulsue the business opportunity, lonned

ACLS and purchased the assets of ACS.

On Novernber 30,20 16, Crystal, ACS ancl ACLS tiled a nrotiou for partial sultìmary

.iudgment. The nrotion had 24 pages of f-acts and, with exhibits, was 366 pages [ong. Bush

--)
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and his alter cgo contpanies opposed thc rnotion but obtained an adclitional 60 days for'

rliscovery, starting Janr;ary 17,2017, Thc Crystal, ACS, ACLS motion secks a cleclalation

that Bush anc{ his altel ego companies owned ¡ro interest in ACS or ACLS. ACLS cannot go

forwald until it obtains a judgmerrtthatBush owns no interest in ¡\CS orACI,S, so it can be

licensed in Nevada.

After March 30, 2016, Brrsh still claims to own a major interest in ACS and thelel'ore

claims an interest in ACLS, Bush has claìrned to have investors linecl up to pay his debts in

exchange for ACS stock. However, at liis d.eposition in October 2016, Bush could not

remember the narne ol'a single so-called investor.

The Deparlment 4 case is vastly more complicatecl lhan the CIP litigation turd, if

Crystal was inclined to settle tlre Department 4 case, it could never be aocornplished in an

after¡roon. flowever, Crystal lms no iliterest in negotiatirrg the Department 4 case at this time.

Since 2014, Bush has repeatedly said he is about to get a large sum of rroney, either from

salesofartor"investors,"buttheywereallliesorunjustifÌedexaggerations. Ilushdidobtain

extensions of deadlines based on. those repr:esentations which came to an end wherr Crystal

discovered lìlrsh's criminal history in October20 15, They negoliâled an âgrcrement forACS

to get away fro¡n IJush but Bt¡sh will not adhere to his agreement.

As seen {i'oryr thç above discussion, it makes no seuse to glant }ush's motion. It

eppears that it is a ruse to avoid the settlen.rent conference bec¿ruse Busli knows very well that

Crystal will not Í)egotiatc the matters in Departrrrent 4 with the pending motion for sutnmary

juclgment. Cìrystal trusted Bush for way too long ancl, so far, Crystal is out rnillions of dollars.

Br¡sh claims that with the iniunction in place and other unresolved i.ssues, he has no

ability to pay the CIP claims. Crystal has no \.vây to çvaluate this asserlion because ilr

cliscovely, Ilush has opposed effbfis to obtain fìnancial infot'rnation fi'orn Bush. A seTtlement

confercnce could resolve the CIP matter without wasting judicial resources in a trial. If all

Cll, gets is a confessiorr ofjrrdgmeut, the settlenlent conference u,ill have set'ved its purpose.

'l'here is no lequirenrent that a settlement conlerence must result in payment and Crystal does

luot expect Busli to pay any jr"rdgment auyway.
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While the CIP casc is stlaightlbrward and set for trial in ft:ur weeks, tlre De¡rartntent 4

litigatiorr is conrpletely clifferent. Aside fi'om the substantive conrplexity and procedural

posture oÍ the Departmelrt 4 câse, thelp is the practical r:eality that Judge Russell, who will

preside over the settlement confercnce, likcly knows very little if anything about the

Deparlrnent 4 case because CIP did not acldless this issue in its settlenlelrt cotrfereuoe briel;

having rejected Bnsh's reguôst that both lnatters be heard at the conference. It is simply

absurd fur Bush and 'IAI to file this ¡notion on shorlenecl tiure asking the Coutt to order, on

the eve or morning of the settlenrent conference, tlrat the complex case in Departrnent 4 be

added to the scope of the settlement confèrence, 'l'herefore, Deflendants' Motion to

Consolidate ftir Purposes ol Settlement should be <Ienìed.

AFFIRMATION
¡rursuant to NRS 2398.030

The undersigned does hereby a1'lirm that the pteceding docu¡ïent docs not contain the

sooial security nurnber ofany person.

DATED: Februar:y 8,2017. WOODBTJRN "A.ND WEDGE

By: /s/ W. Chri.v lilicker
W. Chrìs Wicker
Nevada Bar No. 1.037

I)ane W, Anclerson, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 6883
Altorneys for Plaintifß
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CERTIFICATE OF SEIì.VICII

I heleby certify thar I anr a¡r employee ol'Woodburn and Wedge and that on this date,

I caused |o be sent via electronic service through the Courl's E-flex systenì a true and oorrect

copy of the PLAINTIFtrS'OPPOSIiIION TO DRFENDANTS'MOTION TO

CONSOLIDATD ACTIONS T'OR PURPOSDS OF SETTLAMENT CONFERENCE

ONLY to

Alicia Johnson
JOI-ìNSON I,AW PRACTICE
6l I Sielra R<)se Dr,, Suite A
Iìeno, NV 8951 I
At t or n ey s .for D efe rcdanl,s

Steve M. Defilippis
PICONE & DEFILJPP]S, A P.I.,.C.

625 N. First Street
San .lose, C^95112
Atørneys.f'or Defe nd a nts

DATED this EIh* clay of February,2017

By /.r/ Mo.lísl¡a C. Scott
An employee of Woodbunr and Wedge
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2017-02-061
Jacqu
Clerk

Transaction #STEVE M, DEFILIPPIS
CA State Bar#117292
PICONE & DEFILIPPIS, A P.L,C.
625 N. Firsf Street
San Jose, C^95]12
Office: 408-292-0441
Fax: 408-287-6550
flipsm¿Z0OS@Valtoo.c

Attorneys for Defendants,
RONALD G- BI]SH
TYCIdE ART INTERNATIONAL, INC.

IN THE SECOND JUDICJAI, DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE.Otr'Nü,VADA

IN AND f'OR.THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

CIP RBAL ESTATE SO. VIRGINIA LLC, A
Nevada limited liability cornpany; CIP RËAL
ESTATE LLC, aNevada limited liability
companyi

Plaintiffs,

Case No, CV16"00948

Dept. I

vs.

RONALD G. BUSH aka RO}{NIE G. BUSH, an
individual; TYCHE ART INTERNj.TiONAL,
INC,¡ aNevada corporation; and DOES 1.5,
inclusive,

Defendants.

DEFENDANTS' MATION TO CONSOLTDATE ACTIONS FOR PURPOSES OF
SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE ONLY

1

FILED
Êlectronically
cv1 6-00948

eline
of the

PM

tbritton
rt
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A. BRIEF.STATEMDNT OF'THE NATURE OT'THE ACTION

This case involves a lease on two separate properties by landlords CIPSV and CIP tc

BUSH and TAI rrspectively. The properties were ocqupied by TAI as an art gallery to displal

numerous exclusive ar4 pieces that included works o1'Jackson Pollock; Michaelangelo, Tuan, ani

various other highly acclaimed artists. Plainfiffs and their priircipalr,Steven Crystal, were fulll

aware of the purpose for occupying the premises, as Mr, Crystal lVim actually,involved as a joint

venh¡rer with Mr. Bush in the acqnisition of several of the pieces of arl that were part of the

coilection owned by Mr. Bush and\or TAI.

1. CIPSV v. IIUSH - South Virginia Premises

The contentions as to this propeily revolve around an oral åîangement between Plaintiff

CIPSV, landlord, to ciccupy a comrnercial premíses ("South Virginia Prem¡sçs?), with Defendarl

BUSH as the pÍoposed tênant, with part of Bush's rent to be applied to the joint oWnershipof the

South Virginia Premises, which had a total irrìtial cost to Plaintiff of $1,800,000 plur

improvements that would make the premises inhabitable by a tenant. The terms of the

arrangement were discussed but they were uever established in writing, Plaintiff alleges the

Defendail owes $1,215,748.97 rurder the lease which includes rent and common ar€¿

rnaintenance ("CAM"¡ charges, and S459,983.23' ih tenant improvement work, for a total o.

81,6V5.732.20. However there exists a disagreem.enï by the parties a.s to the material terms of tht

agreement regarding this property.

2. CIP v. TAI - Mill Lcase

The issues as to this property revolve around a cotntnercial lease agreement ("Mil

Lease") between Plaintiff, CIP, Iandlord, and Defendant, TAI. Bush was not a pafty to tha

lease indÌviduatly. Flaintiff alleges that TAI has failed to $ake payments as required by the Mil

Lease and currently owes $55,946.36 (including 3,052.50 in attomey's fees) out of a tota

$64,800.00 (as notecl in the Lease Agreement). However, TAI has paid a total of $21,258.66 or

the Mill Lease and expended approximately $20,000 in improvements. In addition, CIP failed t<

rnitigate by re-letting the prernises. Therefore, the total eost of rent for the two years whereit

2
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